FREDERICKSBURG SEWER AND WATER AUTHORITY
MEETING AGENDA
February 16, 2026

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLIANCE
ROLL CALL

COMMENTS/COMPLAINTS

MEETING MINUTES of the January 12, 2026 meeting.

TREASURER'’S REPORT

Bills Payable
Financial Statement

OFFICE REPORT
Issuance of Sewer Permit for 534 Greble Rd, Lebanon PA.

MCB Disposal waste hauling quote.

OPERATION’S REPORT

Approval of GES to upgrade the LSC WWTP scada system at a cost of

$57,190.

Approval of GES to upgrade the MV WWTP scada system at a cost of

$16,970.
Approval of ERD Ltd to repair 2 UV ballasts at a cost of $2,570.

ENGINEER’S REPORT

SOLICITOR’S REPORT

Adoption of a 2026 Rate Resolution establishing new rates, fees, service

calculations and charges.
Letter regarding water usage at 141 Airport Rd, Fredericksburg.

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS




COMMITTEE REPORTS

Budget Committee
Building Committee
Personnel Committee
Operations Committee

COMMENTS/COMPLAINTS

ADJOURNMENT



FREDERICKSBURG SEWER & WATER AUTHORITY
MEETING MINUTES
January 19, 2026

Chairman Dale Bevans called the meeting to order at 6:30 pm.

ROLL CALL

Dale Bevans, Randy Sattazahn, Rick Rudy, Scott Gettle, Tom Demier and Kevin Helms of the Board
were present. Paul Lutzkanin, Eric Gibson and Dusty Keller were also present. Dot Stubblebine was
absent.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Mr. Bevans made a motion to have the current positions be retained for 2026. Mr. Demler seconded
the motion and the Board voted in favor of the motion.

Chairman — Dale Bevans, Vice-Chairman — Scott Gettle, Treasurer/Secretary — Dot Stubblebine,
Operations Committee- Tom Demler, Scott Gettle, Budget Committee — Kevin Helms, Randy
Sattazahn.

Mr. Bevans made a motion to retain SESI, Engineer and Gibson Law Group LLC, Solicitor for 2026.
Mr. Sattazahn seconded the motion and the Board voted in favor of the motion.

COMMENTS/COMPLAINTS
None.

MEETING MINUTES

Mr. Bevans made a motion to accept the meeting minutes for the December 15, 2025 meeting.
Mr. Rudy seconded the motion and the meeting minutes were accepted by the Board without
objection.

TREASURER’S REPORT

Bills Payables - The payables for December 16, 2025 through January 9, 2026 were presented to
the Board for approval to be paid in the amount of $121,774.74 from the Sewer Fund and $42,953.36
from the Water Fund. Mr. Demler made a motion to pay the bills as presented in the payables report.
Mr. Helms seconded the motion and the Board voted in favor of the motion.

Financial Statement — The financial statement was presented to the Board for approval. Mr. Rudy
made a motion to accept the financial statement, pending audit. Mr. Bevans seconded the motion
and the Board voted for the acceptance of the financial statement, pending audit.

OFFICE REPORT
COLA water rate increase of 5% will take effect 4/1/26.

Fredericksburg quarterly bills were mailed.
South Fredericksburg/Monroe Valley late notices were mailed.

Trish Gerdes covered the office from January 12, 2026 until January 23, 2026.



OPERATION’S REPORT
All three WWTP’s are operating well.

The annual Tier 2 report has been completed and submitted to the PA Dept of Labor & Industry.
The annual Chapter 110 report has been submitted to PADEP.

ENGINEER’S REPORT
Review, approve and execute Resolution 2026-01-19 for PennVest.

Review, approve and execute the PennVest letter of responsibility.

SOLICITOR’S REPORT
Preparing a 2026 Rate Resolution.

OLD BUSINESS
None.

NEW BUSINESS
None.

COMMITTEE REPORTS
Budget Committee — none
Building Committee — none.
Operations Committee — none
Personnel Committee — none

COMMENTS/COMPLAINTS
None.

ADJOURNMENT
Mr. Rudy made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mr. Helms seconded the motion and the Board
voted in favor of the motion.

The meeting adjourned at 7:30pm.

Respectfully submitted,
Dot Stubblebine
Secretary/Treasurer



GJo | abed

21'8€9° VHH [BOIPaI - Z2G1'62F uawasInquiay 1eolpay 9202/61/1L0 Lze66y na
ONIMOIHO ¥3IMIS NOLINS - 907001 J9)ley upsna  9202/6Z/10 FLEE %29y2- Jwd |i1g
£6°8LL-
15'6€- asuadx3 ULofuN - +ZZ'62Y suuofun 9202/6L/10 BEIEZEEL g
1G°6€- asuadx3 WIOJIUN - ¥ZZ 62¥ suuojun 920Z/Z4/10 ZVEGLI6L ilts]
16°6€- asuadxg ulojun - ¥zz'62y suuoyun 9202/60/L0 G8GLLLBL Ing
ONIMOIHO ¥IM3S NOLINA - 80°00L Ls1Lopayy Ajddng uaury g uuoyun Aesdweq  9202/6Z/10 £Le6 %20YD- Jud liig
ZLp86 )
85°000°}1- ueld PIO-0ZZ L0V LLO 00} - L9E'62Y se9 d11e9 9Z02/61/10 ¥0SSLyL g
$5'£86- ueld PI0-0Z2 L0V LLO 00L - LOE'62Y seo d71e9 §z0Z/ETITY 1820L¥L g
ONIMOIHO HIMIS NOLTNA - 90°00L 071 suedoud apisAnunod  9Z0zZ/6Z/L0 45 3¥93yo-Jud Ii'g
v2'ese-
$TeeT- auoUd g JaWalY| suonesado - GZE 62y 92/91L/20°92IY 410 9Z02/2L/40 €261€00 ng
ONIMOIHO ¥3IMIS NOLINS - 907001 jsewon 9202/62/10 LLE6 Y3y jurd g
65°589'¢-
65'689'¢" WesH - 161’62 92/82/20-92/L0/20 9202/51/10 FOEEE00G 09T g
ONIMOTIHO ¥43IMIS NOLINA - 90°00E ssos) anig lended  920zZ/6Z/10 oLe6 399y Jwd {I1g
89°/89'¢-
89°/89'¢- SoUBUSIUIBIN B JIEdaY SBIIURA - LEE 62F a|qionpaq pue s1edal 3PIYaA 9202/1.2/10 g
ONIMOIHD HIMIS NOLINA - 90°00L 2]q13anpaq pue sredad a121YyaA uolsljjog 13qlied  9202/12/L0 BOEE %23Y9- 3Wd g
VG'GrS LG
LLBLY' 9 98ELL UBOT AdJS ledibuud - €1°Z/F 9202 ‘Aterugad- 98¢l / LUBOT ISOAUUS PJodas 0L
€8°92L L1~ 98ELL UBOT A §S1Sam0lUl - €L L.y 9Z0Z ‘Aerugad- 98¢L /[ UBoT JS8AULR PIod3l 0
ONDOIHO ¥3MIS NOLTINS - 90°001 9202 ‘Adenuqad- 9gglL UROT ISIAUUSG PI0d3L O 920Z/20/20 SRS [ewinor [esaud)
88'LYG'GL-
SZ'669'L- 61212 UBOT Ad AW 153181 - 0L b )T ‘AIBrUGSd 6L LLZ# Ad AN JUswiAed Ueo) piodal o1
€9°2¥8'EL- 61412 UROT Ad AW ledioulld - L0°ZLY )2 ‘AIBrUGDS 61 L/Z# Ad AW uawAed Ueo} pJedal o]
ONIMOIHO ¥IMIS NOLINA - 90°001 ‘Ateniqad 61L.L2# Ad AW uawAed ueo| p1ooal o] 9Z0Z/20/20 0265 lewinor |eJauag)
yoGeL' L
i¥'89lL YYEdH - LGL'6ZP lloJAed 10) SpUny JO J3jSuer p10231 Of
62'€G1" Pun4 9N YVWd - §9L°L8Y (1014ed 10} Spury 40 JBjSUBY PIOD3I O
2e°v6- 3IedIp3N - €91 I8P __o.;NQ Joj spuny jo Jaysuel piocosl 04
12°€0%- eold - 19)°L8Y l1014ed Jo} spury Jo Jajsuel pIodal 0]
£1'825'9- YelS - saueles - L 6Tk lio1Aed 10} Spuny Jo Jajsues pIoodI 0]
D0'SEL $103034IQ JO pJeog - SSLBIES - Z1'6ZF ll014ed Jo} SPUNY JO JOJSUEI) PJODBI O,
ONIMOIHD ¥3IMIS NOLINA - 90°00L llo1Aed 1o} spuny Jo ajsuel) pIod3s 0, 9Z0Z/20/20 perind |ewnor |esauag
26'6.2'L-
g9l ilesH - LSL'62p flo1Aed Joy spuny Jo J3JSUBN pI0d3l 0]
66°081- Pund 0N YvWd - S91°18Y {lo1Aed Jo} SPUNY 4O J3jSURN PICI3I O]
Gl 6~ SJedIpa - €31 L8Y __o._>ma 10} spuny Jo Jaysuen pJodai 0]
€1°601- Bdld - 19L°L8Y lloAed Joy spuny Jo Jajsuey piodal o)
9v'L9.'9~ YeIS - saueles - pL'6ZY lloiAed Jo} SpURY JO JOJSUEL PJODBI O
ONIMOIHO ¥IM3IS NOLTNA - 90°00L llo1Aed Joy Spuny o Jajsuen pi09aI OL 9Z0Z/61/1L0 2055 |ewnor jessuen
junowy pled UNO2Y ows DLURR aeq winpy adfy

9707 ‘2T AMenigad ySnouyy 9zog ‘g1 Menuer
Bunssw 10y - pun4 Jomas |1e18Qg yd3Yd

puny 1omas - AlJoyIny J931epA puR Jamas Singsyoliapaldy

wvioL

Wi0L

WLOL

WLIOL

™VIOoL

WLIOL

LIOL

VL0l

TVLOL

92ZLIZ0
Wd z2:Z7



G jo g abeq

§.'882-
00°L02-
S o8-
00'69-
§2'96-
0069~
G296~
00'69-
§.'882-
00°202-
SLEVP'L-
00°GEO0'L-

00'e8L'Z-
00'€8L'Z-

00°Z6¥'e-
00'Zeb'e-

LIS
FAR-

SL69L-
cLelL
6v'8l-
v8've-
61'6¢-
S0'e9-
981~
006~

£8'85-

£8'85-

0088’z
00'v88'2-

€L'6vs-
60°961-
0ozLe
L 0

L8596~
———

Ov'gce-

sebleys 1omag - 5Z1boe
30IAIRG 192(] - 924 'P9E
sabiey) 1amas - GZL'yog
ARG 1920 - 921 ¥IE
sabiey) Jamas - GzZ1'pog
S0IAI3G 1. - 921 P9
sabiey) Jomas - G2ZL'Hog
VINIBS 1997 - 921 P9E
sabiey) Jomas - 6Z1'pot
0BG 1997 - 921 P9E
safieyg Jomas - 6zZ1'poe
NIAIBS 1937 - 921 '¥3E
ONIMIIHD YIMIS NOLTINA - 90°00L

sojdwes qe - zzZ'6zy
ONIM3IHD HIMIS NOLTNA - 90°00L

S[EAWRBYD - LzT'6Ty
ONIMOIHD YIMIS NOLTNA - 907001

WieW @ Jeday-ONIAING "dd0D - 6162
ONMIIHD YIMIS NOLINA - 90°001

sayddng 1ayi0 - G2Z'62v
sallddng JaUIO - 62Z'62F
salddng 18ui0 - 522 629
salddng J8ui0 - 5ZZ 621
salddng JeUl0 - 62z 62V
sailddng 580 - 52Z' 62
salddns JayI0 - SZZ62Y
ONDIDIHD ¥3IMIS NOLTINA - 907001

als pue - pSL 62y
ONIMOIHD ¥IMIAS NOLTNS - 90°00L

Jop2ljos - 91e'62Y
ONMOIHD YIMIS NOLIN4 - 90°001

indwo-sedsy 2 uep dinb3 sdo - blz'6Z8
salddng 8w - LLZ'62F

ONILNIYd ® SQV - vE'62Y

ONIMOIHO ¥3IMIS NOLINA - 90°001

VdH [BOIP3W - 25162

#09 As|IBA 201UOW 8509-/509
Hoo) AsjleA 20JUOW 8509-/509
siolepn AseleliN-£609
siotep, ARNIN-E609
12q9Y4109
19994-v109
J2Ua9y-1609
Jausd)-1 609

Ud-1509 “1oubem-0109
Ud-1509 “18ubep-0109
§9991 HOV

$9991 HOV

G207 13quiaosQ

186 10 1881, njjod

JBUSEMRINN ‘NYF HMSQ Jusunedy

3UB} QI0Z ity stredosd

alempiey

uonejnsut adid ‘ade) jeay ‘uid ¥o0|
Wi yoJo} oIt yas

uaspesq ‘uaboley ‘sauaneq
leg-n

ade) uoya) ‘aa) sseuq

9Z/82/2-92L 12
€225.2 i dnoin

9207 uep-5z0z Aep

wodojob/agqopy
abejsod
3Inpayog Bunasy 9zoz

WBWASINGUIIAY {BIPOIN

9207 ‘¢t Atenuge4 ydnosyl 9zoz ‘T Atenuer
Sunssw Joj - pung 1amas |1e1eq PREIV)

ditjsumo] eiejemsg

sqe7 bunsa) ueqingng

“au} ‘Ysa | -njod

alempieH ouofr

Alddng 6y umojsauor

ue|piens

077 dnoun me uosqio

BSIA jueg uojng

puny 1amas - AJLIoYINY J21BM pue Jamas SingsydLspald

920Z/€2/10

9zoz/ie/Lo

920z/02/10

9202/6H/10

920z/eL/L0

9202/60/1.0
920Z/62/10

§eoz/LerL
9202/62/1L0

9z0z/0L/10
9202/62/10

9z0z/eHio
9202/62/10

920Z/42/10
920Z/L2/L0
9z0z/€2/10
920z/L2/10
9202/vL/1L0
920z/90/10
9202/90/1.0
9z0z/6Z/1L0

9202/5i/10
9Z0T/6T/L0

9202Z/GL/10
9202/62/1L0

9202/60/10
9z0z/62/10

9202/82/10

20491

ioe ]

cEEIL

ae3gl

99991

G998k
TEE

6500092d8€09
54

BE0GZT
0zZg6

LivePP9L
BLLE

0068951
Lififagt
6€189G1
2erLost
L0¥89GL
be'ia ol
€6£59G1

8LE6

€2TSLL
11¢6

VEgiE
9l€6

85vT
516

80€10¥208

g

1]

L]

g

g

ng
ABYD- jud Ing

ng
¥23yd-ud g

328y Jud [itg

L
R298Yy-3ud [1ig

g
[12]
\itg

3234 3wd lig

na
}02Yo-jud g

]
Y23y ud g

g
H23Yo- Jwd g

g

TvioL

TeLOL

TvLOL

To L0

i0oL

IvLOL

TLOL

vi0oL

9areLeo
Wd 22°2



G o ¢ abed

8Ly

12'¢62-
ITEBT-

00°L9}-
00°L94-

00'0G1-
Do 0G1-

[Sepiny
LG le-

£5°811-
Lg'ee-
16'6¢e-
LG'6e-

§1°886-
§1'886-

ye'20e-
£9°08-
ig'1elL-

6¥°0L¥-
0061

18'vvL-
8L'9tL-
vg'6cL-

00'gel-
00'szh-

69'161-
69°161-

0.'82-
QlgeE-

05962~

0526k~
O'BEL-

BQUED ‘YOIHYT-IAS pajoRAUOD -

fastAlT44

ONIMOIHD H3IMIS NOLTINS - 807001

sayddng Jay3Q -

geeezy

ONIMOIHD ¥aAMIS NOLTINA - 90700k

Wo-gLe 080 L01 001 -

oge'ezy

ONMOIHD HIMIAS NOLINS - 907001

VdH fejueq -

€516y

ONDIOIHSD HIMIS NOLTINS - 90°001

ased juawdmnbg -

P AT

ONIMOTHO ¥3IMIS NOLTNS - 90°00L

asuadxg wiopun -
asuadxg unoyupn -
asuedxg uuopun -

vzeezy
veceey
vee 6y

ONDIDIHD ¥IMIS NOLINS - 907001

Weid pi0-02¢ L0Y £10 00} -

Lee'6ey

ONIMOIHD ¥YIMIS NOLTINA - 907001

PEOY 3|GaIH/eURT YMS -
uonejs duund 19aas uley iseg -

e ALTA
z8e'62h

ONIMIIHD ¥3M3S NOL N4 - 90°001

sayddng JayiQ -
dLMAM A3]IBA B0JUOH -
saliddng JayiQ -
saliddng JayiQ -

geeezy
187'6Z%
geeeey
seeezy

DNIIDIHD ¥IMIS NOLINS - 907001

Wiew 2 Jedoy-ONIATING 'dU0D - 61621

ONIMOIHO ¥IMIS NOLTINS - 907001

3UoUd ¥ 1oWLiul LIWpY -

veezy

ONIMOIHD ¥IMIS NOLTINS - 90°00L

oWo-gie 080 LOL 001 -

99€'6ZY

ONIMOIHO HIMIS NOLTINS - 90°001

sableyy Jomag -

3010195 1g9Q -

STL'v9e
92L'voe

fonuoY 1854 Asenuep

AE Y03

LUy DT

S82IAIG NPalD) J0dag swoH

92/LL-GZ/LI0L

Kuoyny 1ajep @ Jomag Bingsyolepal

JuswBsINGUIBY [BIUSq

92/SHZ0-9Z/9L/L

suuopuNn
suuogun
suuoyun

LSLOPaiy

Se9 d1

J3||29) unsng

03230(

Ajddng uaui = uuogtun Assdwag

071 auedouy apisAnunon

AaIne .p/E L X 4S
08 AV8S.-dSd ssiag

au] ‘ureyd g sjleq ‘sbuueag

S3|E} d1[EM
J9)eaH auibu3 pesjoH
198 J9jing

JaNiwsues 19Aa| pinbiy

$adinag Jeude) uozewy

Jiedas aunpxy bl Juswpedy

D711 59914135 [B2L103]T MAH M S

9L/Y2/20-92/52/10

9z/9L/L0-G2/EL el

BLILUN £009 YO9UYS £209
BLIWNN £009 "MO9UYDS£Z09

9207 ‘7T Aeniga4 y3noayl 970z ‘7T Aenuer
Sunasw 4oJ - pung 19Mas |1_13Q 3P3Y)

jseOWon

U sanlun 19N

pun4 Jamas - AJLoyIny Ja1ep Pue Jamas Singsyduapald

9z0e/ee/10
9z0zreLieo

9202/ce/1L0
9Z0Z/2LIeo

9202/01/20
9202ZIR0

9202/62/10
92022LIR0

9202/82/10
9z0Z/ZLi20

9202/60/20
9202/20/20
9202/L2/10
92022120

9202/60/20
9z0zZ/ZLIZ0

9202/90/20
920Z/¥LIL0
920220

9202/50/20
9202/20/20
9202/82/10
9202/50/10
9202/T120

seoz/verel
9202/62/10

9202/81L/10
9202/6Z/1L0

9202/6L/10
9202/62/1L0

9207/€2/10

0659668
veee

SEEF0CY

0501
[4%1]

12003
Leee

€08Y0s

€1e05161
809ZpL6L
969PEL6L

GETE

08Giehi
82¢6

5088271
004821
22¢6

POIMJAPINArL
MPHWIOPILALL
HOXOEXPUXIL
ATP9TdAXOLYL
BEEE

6L
5IE6

GS0L€00
FILS

€60210v00vLS
TECE

E0L3L

g
¥o9YyD-jwd lilg

e
¥o9Yyg- Jwd |lig

ng
A8YY- Jwd g

ng
%29y jwd g

ma
33RYD-ud g

g
11|
$I3YJ- juid {1ig

ng
328yd-ud g

g
g
¥dayg-ud g

g
g
g
g
339YJ-1ud g

na
329yd-iwd lig

g
¥234g-3wd ing

ng
H2UD- N [HE

WWLOL

™v10L

TvioL

Wi0oL

Ww1i0oL

L0l

Tv.LOL

TvLiOL

WLOL

VLO0L

ToLC

™WLOL

9o
WNd 22:2



S Jo v abed

ao'se-
aorge-

LTS
LTGh

geeee-
00's-
ao'g-
00'9-
oores
00°0b-
000
AR YA
88l
slee-
GlLee-
05'Z6-
05'26-

oo'i-

oo'd-

¥4
izt

€1'e0g-
28'09-
80'8-
LE'GL-
98'9-
92704~
00'9-
cL'el-
oo g
6365
02'06-
00°L-
6v'e-

18°68E'G-
18'68€'G*

b2

eqIeb ‘YoIPUI-0AG PaIORRUCD - ZGZ 62V
DNMOIHO HIAMIS NOLINA - 90°001

saiddng 2240 - L1262k
ONIOIHO ¥IM3IS NOLINA - 80°001

Indwo)-nleday 3 ey dinb3 sdo - pLZ'6ZY
Jieday g ule Juswdinb3 eoWo - Z1Z'6ZY
indwod-sedsy g e dinb3 sdo - y1z'62H
Jleday 2 Jule Juswdinb3 SoWO - ZLZ'62F
indwo)-ileday 3 Julep dinb3 sdo - pLZ'62Y
Jreday g Juiely JuswWdinb3 9dWO - ZLZ 62
ndwo)-seday 9 yue dinb3 sdo - vi1Z'62y
Jleday @ ule Juawdnb3 soWO - ZLZ 628
Indwod-iledsy g ulRW dinb3 sdo - y1Z'621
Jieday P Juiew wawdinb3 soWO - Z1Z'628
Indwo-neday B ey dinb3 sdo - y12'6Z1
Jteday g Jutey uswdinb3 sowo - Z12'6ZY
ONIMIIHD ¥IMIS NOL NS - 90°00L

suonesad-"oAS PIIOR[UOY - £5Z'6ZY
ONDIOIHO ¥IMAS NOL'INS - 90°001

abeieO-6EE 080 LOL 004 - L9E°62Y
ONMOIHD ¥IMIS NOLTINA - 90°001

920z Arenuer

ueld JBa A | 1SOd MET JogeT [BI19pa4 PUB d

12/22/1 dxo [emauas UIRLLIOP JEBA |
12/22/1 dxo [eMaUal UIBLWIOP Jeak |
9207 Aseruged Aunoagiaqhd

9207 Aterugad Apinoagiagh

920z Alenigad Janodsig auopuluaS
9202 Aleniga4 JaA0osIq auolpuusg
9207 Ateruga G9E S0 YOSOIIN
9Z0Z Aleruga4 GoE 90 YOoSOoIN
920z Atenuer dnyjoeq anod

920z Aenuer dnyoeq ano)

920z Areruge poddns snoojuowwio)y
9Z0z Aeniga 4 poddns snoojuouswon

X3} [ejuawsiddns

92/12/10-62/22/T)

saiddng JBWO - 672 621 LBy JIe Japuiiko suedaud ‘siamo} doys ‘yound dn suy

saliddng Jau10 - 52262
saflddng JaWO - GZZ'6ZY
sailddng JaWo - 62Z'62¥
saddng JBUYI0 - ST 6ZY
salddng 20 - 52262
sayddng Jawio - 622 62
sayiddng JaW0O - 622621
saiddng 18410 - 522620
sayddng S0 - 52Z'62¢
sanddng Jayio - 6ZZ'6ZH
salddng 180 - 62Z'62F
ONIMDIHD WIMIS NOLTINS - 90004

S|BMWLBYY - 12262V
ONIMIIHD ¥3IMISs NOLNA - 907001

Ul 0z (1Y suedold
sanolf unistoap

Jue} gloz 11y auedosd
aJnsesw ade) ‘Yogn
sBuysnq ‘diys ond
Rue} oz (i suedosd
»ue) oz Iy auedold

p109 Jamod ‘ade} jesy ‘Beq pues sbuelo

Jopayeq
3ue) giog Iy suedold
Jjoq 34a Be|

e

|eAoWaY asmyay uyezeyes

191Ua5 aduel|dWwo? J91S0g

*au) ‘ABojouysa} aAjosjuiod

auj ‘wasAsg (e auQ elueAjAsuuag

PI-18|W

Aiddng By umojsauor

071 ‘siediway) Ayersadg o

9207 ‘2T AMeruga4 y3noays 970z ‘zT Atenuer
Buisaw 104 - pund 1amas [1839Q 323Y)
pun4 Jamas - AllIoyiny 1312\ pue Jamas SingsyoLapal

920e/5e/10
9zozzLee

9202/€0/20
9z0Z/ZLeo

9202/€0/20

9202/10/20

9202/10/20

9202/10/20

9202/10/20

9202/10/20
9z02eLrR0

9zoz/1e/lo
9Z0zZreLrzo

9202/L2/10
920Zr2LIZe

9202/0L/20
9202/60/20
9202/90/20
9202/50/20
9202/%0/20
9202/€0/20
9202/€0/20
9202/0¢/L0
9202/62/10
9¢0¢/92/10
9z0z/22/L0
9202/02/10
920272110

9202/92/10
920212120

£1685
S

NZHPSSS86
oree

g

£089¥

i

LOEE

POESY

BEEE

polgell
FILE

9G182..08G6
LZE8

¥S0LLGL
L6L0.GL
99P0LGL
90€0/G1
9910.G1
Ze00451
8600451
109696}
LPEBE9GL
1618961
869796}
§62.L9G1L

acEs

EEGED

ng
A23YD-3ud g

g
¥IByD-jud 1i'g

g

113
A29Y3- ud g

g
#I9YD- 3wid g

g
323yD-juid g

A23YD- Jwid llig

L
¥29yd- uud g

WIOL

V10L

IVLiOL

wVi0L

VIOoL

IvLOL

TLOL

Wi0L

RYATAYAd]
Wd ZT°E



5 jo g abed

68'STL‘8ST-
T6°ZIT'TL-
V" L80°EL-
95°STY'VI-

Lg8le-
legle-

22'926'6"

2T'Ye6'6-

¥£'690°G1L~
16'8ze-
€8'6LL'E"
LZoge-
GE'8LE'0L"
9L've-
£9¥Z-
€5°1vZ-

zegll-
ce8LL-

9e'ryL'8-
9E' VL8

9€'8€EL-
444y
v6'eg-

0€'9.0'¢-
0€'9£0'¢"

S319VAVd V101
sajqeAed
sjudwied ueol
|joaAed

80119 JUOUd 3lIGoly suonesadQ -

oze'ezy

ONIMDIHO YIAMIS NOLINS - 90700k

|eAoway 3b6pN(S -

gegey

ONDIO3HD HIM3S NOLNd - 907001

Sd UeW "3-22Z 90¥ £10 001
dLMM AIN-£2L 06 090 0OL

Sd Ul 3mI-289 LZv 090 00+
JdIMM-9€9 OFL 001 00!

Sd P 3(epXr-9ee 265 210 004

- C9E'6Z
- 89€'62Y
1 G9E'6ZY
- 69€'62F
- boL'eey

ueld PIO-02Z L0V L10 00} -
d Sli'H PJeWIY-6G6 6€¥ L10 001 -

Log'ezy
£9£'62Y

ONIMOIHD ¥IMIS NOLINAS - 90°00L

S0Wo-¢1E 080 LOL OOL -

99¢g'62y

ONIMOTHO ¥IMIS NOLINS - 507001

[eAoway abpnyg -

g€eeecy

ONIXMOIHD YIMIS NOLTNS - 90°00L

sabiey) Jomasg -

0IAIBG 1927

SZL'pyoe

-92LvoT

ONIMOIHO YIMIS NOLINS - 90004

ss|dwes qet -

ceeesy

ONMOIHO ¥IMIS NOLTNS - 907001

92/e2/L0€2TL
L0000-0¥€2002VS

SZIERLGT/TE

Se/BLIZL-G2/12/LL
se/eLizi-geney
Se/eLiZL-sz/ieLy
se/eLlieL-sznziL
Ge/eLZL-gene/LL
geeligi-seine/LL
Ge/LzreL-szive/LL

9g/1e/o-se/eziet

9z0¢ Aenuer

puBIg-9L09#
PuRIg-9L09#

Buysey Aenuep

SSAJAJIM UOZUSA

wawabeue a1sep

P3-19N

P3-18IN

Juswabeuey aysep

diysumo] eiejemg

sqe Bbunsaj uequngng
920t ‘¢T Aenige4 y3nouy: 9zoz ‘ZT Adenuer
Buneaw 1o} - pung 18mas [1813Q AI3YD)
pung Jamas - AjoyIny Ja1ep pue Jamas 3ingsyouapald

920z/22/L0
920Z/LLHZ0

9202/20/10
9202/62/10

§202/92/21
§20z¢/92/2L
G202/9Z12)
§20z/92/2)
A A TArAY
§2oe/9erel
§eoz/9z/eL
9202/92/10

9202/L2/10
920212LIZ0

9202/20/20
920Z/2Li20

9202/0¢/10
BEOERLZD

920Z/LE/LO
92022 LIZ0

S0S.8LPELS
143

/-1900-101€919
143

OFSLLMOGESE
9980518€.G96
G980518€.56
¥¥S11006696
2¥SL 100656
L¥SL 100656
8E6620P656
143

S6182..0856
F¥iS

019000958919

L]

DZ294
£PEE

¥1#0092d8€09
ves

na
323yD- jwd 1119

ng
328yd-jwd g

328y 3ud g

ng
3294y ud (g

g

}o3YD- 1wd g

g

3228Y-jud g

g
323Yyo- 1ud g

TvLlOL

WIOL

WL0L

TWLOL

TWLOL

WiOL

Wi0oL

9¢reLieo
Wd ze:e



4 Jo | abed

LNNGOOV ONIMOIHO ¥ILYM NOLINS - 90°001L £22s.. Qi dnoxgy uetpiens 9202/62/10 Chrd A2_YQ- 3ud 1itg

05'481'C-

05'281°C- JOIVNOS - SLEBYY 920z Asenuer-5zoz e 9202/SH/ILO LRI L=}
ANAOJDVY ONDIDIHD ¥ILYM NOLINA - 90°001 0711 dnog me uosqlo 9202/62/10 Lara ¥o34yy- nud 118

2l evs-

BO9EL- ndwo)-neday 2 JuleW dinb3 sdo - viz'ery woooyob/eqope

EQ L ONLLNIYNG @ SAV - vE'8pp 3|npayes Bunsep usiang

00Zie- seliddng 900 - LI ery ebejsod 9202/80/10 b1 ing
LNNOJJV SNDIDIHO ¥IALYM NOLINL - 90001 BSIA yueg uoyng 9202/62/40 LEre 333Yo- Jud g

L8786~

ov'ege- VHH [BOIPOI - ZG) '8t uswesinquisy (edlpsiy BI0ZmEILD 80€L0¥Z08 [LIc]

L1'8eg VHH [BOIPO - 2518ty justssINquIEy [eOIPBN SEOEELILD LZEBBY g
INAIODJV ONIMOIHO ¥ILVM NOL1Nd - 907001 J3jiay usng 9202/62/10 ohre H3oUDr g g

ekl

Lgee- asuadx3 wioyun - vze'gry suuopun EOTMLILD FRESTLEL g

L5 aE @suddX3 ULOUN - YZZ 8rY suloyun eTAA A A0 EFEBLLEL ng

LEgE: asuadxg ulopun - ¥ZZ sy sulojiun SE0EEILG G8GLELBL g
ANMODDY ONDIOTHD ¥ILYM NOLINA - 90°00L Aiddng usury g uuoyun Aesdwaq  STOTVEZILD B5FE 399uD- Jwid g

e

rEERE- BUoYd B 1BLUBIU| UILPY - LZe'ery 9Z/9L20-9ZILLI0 9202/TH1L0 ETELEDD ng
ANMOJDV ONIMNOIHD ¥3LYM NOLTINS - 90700} jseawod 9202/62/10 EETR HIBYD- Jud g

09'689'e-

09'689'¢- UlesH - LSL'8ky 92/82/20-92/10/20 920z/SLL0 FOCEE0051092 na
LNAODIV ONIMOIHO HILVM NOLINS - 907001 $5049 an|g |epden 9z0Z/62/10 L4578 HIayzr g (g

£9'/89'¢-

89°/89'¢- ooueusluel B edoy S8PIUSA - LEE BYY s|quonpag pue redal spIYBA SEOEEILG L 1]:}
LNNOOIV ONIMIZHO ¥ILYM NOLINS - 90001 a|quonpaq pue tiedal 3|21ysp uoisijoD Jaqgied 920Z/1Z/40 g5re H28YD- Juud II1Ig

L' 1LS5'9LL-

821689k L YILVYM QISVYHOHNd - €28vy SCI9EITL-GTI0LLL SIOLSEEL arLsoLt litg
ANMOOOV ONIMOIHD ¥ILYM NOLINS - 90°00¢ Ruoyny uoueqsT jo AuD 9202/92/10 17 0 yoouD- g jig

80PLL L~

ly'89l UyeaH - 1SLevy lioshed Joy spuny Jo Jajsuen pioos) o)

8Z'estL- pund 3N YYWd - G9L L8k llolAed 1o} spuny Jo I8jsURY PiOOS: O

ZE'ma- SIEADBN - €QL'LBY lfoihed Joj SpUny JO JBJSUBI PJO3) O

SZE EDld - LOL L8 lloahed Joy spuny Jo 1ajsUBS pIOdSI O

£9'955'g HelS - seleles -yl 'gry liosAed Joy spuny Jo Jejsues) pJovsl o)

[T el B SJoyenQ IO pIeog - SBUBES - ZL 'SP licuAed Jog SpuNy JO JaJSUBL} pICOaY 0],
LNAODOV ONIMOIHO HILYM NOLINS - 907004 l1o+Aed 103 SPUN} JO J3ySURS PIOIAL Of STOETOED ELEE |RLINQT RIS

66°0G1°2-

(8.3} uieaH - LGL gy llo:Aed Jo} SpUNY jO JajsURS PIODBI O

BE DRL- pund ON vvNd - G9L'L8Y lioxAed Joj Spuny Jo Jejsuen pIo0ss 0}

FibE BEODNN - 9118 noAed oy spuny JO Jajsuel} PIODas 0

EL S0P BOld - L9l L8Y tloJAed o) Spun} jo Jsjsues) piooal 01

GS'8E9' Hels - ssueies - v1 b llosAed 4oy SpUNy JO JajsUBS PIODAI O
LNNODIY DONIMOIIHO ¥ILYM NOLINS - 907001 lloaAed Joj spuny Jo Jejsues Pi0dal of 9202/6L/1L0 Fd11 JEWINOf [eJ3Udg

junoury pied ULk Qw3 BUEY &g wnn adhy

9202 ‘ZI Aueniqa4 ybnoays z} Aenuep
sbunasyy 104 - pund Ja3ep [reyaqg X28yo
pund J8jep - Auoyiny Jajep pue 1amas Bungsyouspaly

TELDL

WLOL

V1oL

TYiOL

ELALENS

TeL0L

TWIOL

L0l

vLOL

IVIOL

ST
Wd EFT



Hjo z abed

BE'BL- seliddng Jayio - sZT vy Son[e) enjiem SEOTEED POAMAAFINACE ng
L2°94 L~ sanddns JeWo - GZT 8Py 15 |ind 9202/82/10 HOMOEXPHXIN L [1Ez]
95 2~ saliddng JUi0 - 5ZT8YY 3IqED UOISUBIXS JaLIaY}a JOopING 9202/L2I10 WADIFLOADSL g
LNNOJOV ONMIZHD YILYM NOLTNA - 90°00L S3d|Aleg |8j|deD) UOZRWY  9Z0Z/ZLIZ0 S.L¥D %9943 Juid INg

00°GZt- TWLOL
LOSEL Wew g siedsy-ONIaTING "d¥00 - 61'8rY Jredes anpay Wb uswuedy szozierel ZEL e
LNNODOV ONIMOFHO YILVM NOLINA - 90°001 OT15901MI3G [BOWIDBIT MOH M S 9Z0Z/62/L0 ribe 294D~ Jwd INg

00°000°2 IVLOL
00°000°Z- SHuLBd « £81'8FY BiAal Ued [0UOD LUOYN|I0d LORRIUSWUIPIS B UOISOIT SZ0ZIBZITL na
LNNODOV ONIMOTHI HIALYM NOLINA - 90°001 PLsI uogeAlasuo) Quno) uouege T  9Z0Z/6Z/L0 £irg #9ayo- Jwd Ing

00005 IYLOL
00°00%- SHulad - £82'8FY 994 Jalep ues) szozeeieL 5]
ANNODOV ONIMOIHO ¥ILVYM NOLINA - 90°001 pund J9Jep UedID 4007 920Z/6Z/10 zivd A034D- Jwd Iig

o0 iy IVLOL
O s sajdwes qel « zZz 8y 620 Jaqusdaqg SZOZ/LERL B500092d8E09 na
ANNODOV ONIMDOTHD HIALYM NOLINA - 307001 sqeq Bugsey uequingng  9Z0Z/62/L0 Ll #98uo- Jud g

89'L6L- TYLOL
89'16L- SUOUA '8 1SS UILIPY - LZE'8bY 9ZIYTIT0-92/62/10 920Z/8LIL0 SSOLEDD e
ANNOJOV ONDIDIHD HIALYM NOLTIN - $0°00L ISEOWOD  9Z0Z/8Z/L0 0¥ %¥93y3- 1ud g

BE ¥ IVLOL
ﬂ SIEOIAUD - LTZ 8ty PIS BULIOIUD UoeH SEOENERL SELLEBIOANI ug
LNNODOV ONIMIFHI HILYM NOLINA - 90°00) doog NG VSN 9Z0Z/6Z/LO0 Ea #9342~ nud Ing

¥6'656- TeLOL
¥6'666- S|evlwayy - Lz 8k Joyoinbi 9%5°ZL 0dAH pog 9Z02/5LIL0 SYTELIES g
ANNODOV ONDDAHD HIALYM NOLINA - 30°00) VSN suonnjog Jfemun  9Z0zZ/6Z/10 L] HIYT B ([5E

A9'Bz- TYLOL
BB~ SOWO-E£1€ 080 1Ot Q0L - J9S'8hY 9TIQLILO-STIELIZL 9202/60/L0 EEOZLOPDORLE L]
ANNOJIV ONDIDIHD YIALYM NOLINA - 307001 UL ‘SAINN IDN  920Z/6T/L0 198 #9940~ Jwd 118

ooa TyloL
ANNODOY ONIMOTHD ¥ILYM NOLINA - 90°001 et} "ou| satBojouyoa | adeUNSANG 9Z0Z/6Z/L0 98 Wae- e N8

9l'g TvloL
=3 WIBW B sHeday-ONIATING "du0D - 6L 8FY JBUSBMBINN 'NYE MHSQ Wswpedy 9202/TL N0 LiFaFroL -]
ANNODOV ONDHIOFHD HILYM NOLINA - 90°001 0771 ‘sJempieH ouor  9Z02/6Z/1L0 5are %9240~ Juid Itg

T EaL- LLATet]
H-T.| sanddng JaUIG - 5ZZ'8bY suel qioz Il euedoiy 9Z0T/LTILO Do6EgSL 1]
B L sanddng Jeui0 - 5TZ'8Yh alemprey 920TILTIL0 L¥B89GL g
g sajiddng 18410 - 5ZZ'8YY uolensu edid "ade; yeay 'uid %00 9ZOZIET/LO 6E18951 [l:]
61'6e- senddng Jouyi0 - szTery W Yoo Wbl yaes 9Z0Z/LTILO TTYLOSL k&
0 TEr sayddng JaliQ - 6ZZ 8vt usapielq ‘usbioey ‘seuspeq OZOZWLILO fotanci [15=]
S8l saliddng JsY0 - 62Z'8YY og-n 9202/90/1L0 SYSOSL =
o0& s9)ddngS JayiQ - 622 8YY ade} uopa) ‘o8 sseiq HEOTSOVO £6€68GL na
INNOJIV ONIMOIHD HILVM NOLTINA - 907001 Addng By umoisauor  920zZ/62/1L0 Fare 294D~ 1ud Hg

£8'85- TVLOL
£8'85- Q1S 28y - poL8YY 928TITO-92/10/20 9Z0T/GL/L0 €226LL ina

JunRoiLYy pieg unoary TR BALFERY mEq usnipy adi]
9202 ‘71 Aeniqad ybnouayy Zg Asenuep
wmc_umws_ 104 - pun4 Ia}lepp [1ejag ¥o9yon —

pund Jajeps - fjuoyiny 19jepp pue Jomag Bingsyoliapald

Wd 292



77 Jo ¢ 9beg

AINNODOV ONIMOIHOD WILYM NOLINA - 90004 ‘ou| ‘ABojouydat sAlosiUIod  SZ0ZZLIZO 9@k I g 118
657L8' L TwLOL
v 9 IIBAM-PBL ¥EY LLO 00L - ¥OE'8YY 9Z/VZILOSTIZEITL 9202/L2/10 868.5205656 g
LNNOIDV ONIMOIHO ¥ILYM NOLINA - 90°00L PIWW  S2OZELED SEFR
=g WLIOL
Teoe s9lddng JaYI0 - G228y Wey Jie sepuliko auedosd 'siamo) doys yound dneu 9202104120 ¥SOLLSL Ik
E0'R sanddns JaYi0 - sz 8Ty Sue} gioZ iy suedaid 920Z/60/20 161064 [}
LE'GL- sayddns JaYlo - 52T 8Py saA0[6 unisszap REOT/ROZD 99r0.G1 =]
98 saddng U0 - GZZ ey yue3 g0z 1y suedosd 9Z0Z/S0/20 90E0L6L [12=]
L0 saliddng Jewio - GzzeYY aunseaw ade} 'Joq n 9Z02/v0/20 991051 =)
Lo'e saliddng JBUl0 - 5z '8rY sBuiysng ‘diis o6 ord 9Z0ZI£0I20 ZEO00LS) na
L saiddng us\0 - 52Z'ery ue) qioz Ity suedosd 9202/£0/20 ES00SE g
00’1z saNddns 18010 - 62T '8Py Uel Qioz Wy suedold 920Z/08/L0 Pl i-=1- g
68'65" sayddns J8W0 - G2T8YY pJoo semod ‘ade) Jeay ‘Beq pues ebueio arorMsIriL LPESEEL ng
0Z'05 saddng J8Ul0 - G228y Jopayeq 920Z/92/10 16/8961 g
004 saiddng 1eulQ - 622 8YY Hue} gioz Il suedosd 920212210 869.951 (=]
BEE- soliddng Jsyi0 - 62z gty ilog a4e Bey 9202/02/L0 85T L]
ANNODIV ONIOIHD HILVM NOLINA - 907004 Aiddng By umoissuor 9202724120 Five AIAYTr R g
[E-g0 g THEOL
[E-gA abeqieb 'yoyI-sAS payrNuo) - 25T 8T lenuos 1sad Alenuer SEOEMEEAN ¥0659668 i}
INMODOV ONIMOIHO ¥WILYM NOLINA - 90001 OULUAIHYT OF 920212420 cEre A22Yo- ud 1ig
arese- TWLOL
akese saddng eUI0 - 522 8K 195 %00 9202122110 SEAr0CY e
LNNODOV ONIIDIHD YILYM NOLTINA - $0°004 S9dIIag NpasD Jodag BWOK 920272120 Z8v8 HIWYT Wl 1S
JARA S TYLOL
T suonessdo-uewdinbs - ySz B 98/1710 Jojeullolo) yue L 1sel STOTPNED SYB858Y L g
LNNODDV ONINOIHD ¥ILVM NOLINA - 90°001 Auedwod yoeH  920Z7ZL7Z0 LEbE NI W WG
DOSEL TvLOL
o S0l10-€LE 080 LOL DOL - L9EBYY 9ZILIL-SZILIOL ITOTOLE0 50l 1]
LNNODOV ONINIIHO ¥IALYM NOLINA - 90°001 Auoyny Jajepm @ samas Bingsxwouepaly  9Z0Z/ZLiZ0 0&ve HIMED W [
00051~ THLOL
00051~ WeH Fidad  ECL gy JuswesINquIRY [BlUaQ 9z0Z/62/1.0 12009y g
LNNODOV ONIMIIHO ¥ILYM NOLINA - 907004 SERE URENG 9Z0ITLT0 Bive H20UT- Jd g
05'/¢e- WLOL
...8.R.| aseaT uswdinb3 - cLZ'8vr 92/ +/20-92/19L/10 920Z/82/L0 BOERG =
LNNODOY ONIMITHD ¥ILYM NOLINA - 907001 oIo0g  STORTLED BLVE %9849 Jud g
TE'8LL: WVLIOL
LE'6E- ssusdx3 uloyun - $ZZevy BLLICHLR - Fan Fafl T TLPIg1EL HE
L5'6¢- asuadx3 uLOHUN - YZZ by SN 9202/20/20 809ZvL6L e
L6 @suadx3 uuopun - yZZ'8ry FULIPL SEOELENG GEGFELEL ne
ANNOOIV ONIMOIHO HIALYM NOLINA - 90°004 Aiddng usury g uuoyun Aesdwsg  920Z71/Z0 Livd %29y0- Juid Iig
¥5'666'68- ™WLOL
566668 HIALYM Q2SVHONNG - €2'8vY 9212TIL0-GTIRTITL 9202/10/20 BLGLCLL ing
LINNODIV ONIMOIHD YILYM NOLTINA - 907004 fAuoyiny uouege jo AND  9Z0Z/ZLIZO0 LY I W 1128
AL Wi0L
unoAlng pled unnsoy TETET auey ae0 AT TN} adf |

9202 ‘zi fueniqad ybnousyy gy lenuep
sbuneay 104 - pun4 J191BpA [1B39Q Y93YD s
pund Jajepn - AjLoyiny 13jepp pue Jamag Bingsyouapald wd w_..,_«._“



B0 v obeyg

€S'6vT'TST- vioL
PT°€LT0E- sajgeAed
2E€'18590Z- Y102
L0°STEYT- liosked ;
8y'L8T'e- IvLOL
Elgz- BUUOIBW| V100-96€ OEY 10 00} - 89E'8YY ScieLzL-seiNeiL fervrdierdra® V980518256 ta
EF0E- jineA uoiba-£86 6416 260 001 - Z9E'BbY Se/eLieL-eeiLE/LL G20zZ/9eiTh £¥51 1006656 s
99°028- G IBM-LE0 GEY £10 001 - €9E'8YY SeereL-seveiL erdvATAIAN LE665207656 g
9810V - < IPM-L26 vEY £10 00L - G98'8PY SeTITL-SevelLL rAsreieroAra 9EBBSTOVESE kg
ANNOOOV ONIMOIHO HILVYM NOLINd - 90°00) EREH] 9202/92/10 143 39y 3wd Ity
0¥l - VLOL
00'v8L'L- Juel JBJeAn 1se3-289 688 LO0 001 - 69€°8YY seleLieL-seiLe/Ly geoz/oerel £980G18EL66 g
INNODOV ONIMOIHD HILVYM NOLINL - 90°001 PI-IRN 9Z02/5L/L0 143 HAauDye Jilg g
ek IvLioL
el 0IPYo-¢LE 080 LOL 00} - LoE°8PP ST AN AR e A ATAN 9c0e/Le/0 §518¢.L0856 na
ANAOJOV ONIMOIHO ¥IALYM NOLINS - 90°00L BN 92022120 A 44 Ho3yy- yud Ing
Lcat- IV.LOL
Leal- obese9-6¢€ 080 104 001 - 99E'8YY Qcne/Lo-sereeieL 9z0z/LeL0 9618240856 g
ANNODJV ONIMOIHD HILVYM NOLINS - 90°00) BI-1aN LTAArATrA ] ievs Ho3UD- Jud (ilg
PS'66¢C- IVLOL
.va,wMIlI sejdwes ge - Zzz'svy Buysay Aenuer 920Z/LEL0 ¥1v0092d8E09 g
INAOIIVY DNMOITHOI UILVYM NOLTNA - 90°00L sqe Bupsal uequngng 9202724120 o6ra Hoayo-3ud g
00°G68't -AkelN
all Buusauibus - 18/ °8YY JUBKNSUCOGNS BIUSWILIAUT ‘UOHEBRSSAU] PUBHBAA BEOTGLILO BOSO0ZTR00 g
ANAODIV ONIMOIHO HILVYM NOLINA - 90004 *au] ‘Buthaming @ Bulisaulbul RIS ST LD BEbE HIHTY- e [HE
00'se- TeLOL
al-l SuONEIadO-5AS PRICBIUDYD - £GZ 8PP 9207 Aenuep 9202/52/10 £468S g
LNNOJIY DNIMOTHD ¥ILYM NOLTNA - 90°001 [eAOWIDY asnay uyezeyneg 92022120 8898 328uD- Jud g
4TS viol
fraciy sefddng 200 - L8y ueid Jeak | meioqer] [erapad pue ed BIOTENTT SWZHYSS586 it}
ANMOJOV ONIMOIHO ¥ILVM NOLINS - 907004 Jayuag asuendwod Jaysog 9202ZLi20 18v8 303y~ Jwud 11g
GZ'86€- IVLOL
00°G- ndwog-ieday ® e dinbg sdo - viLZ'gvy 1212z dxe jemauas ugwoq ek |
oog- Jeday g uep ‘dinb3 soWo - ZLZ' 8y 12122/ dxa [emaual Ulewoc) Jeak | SEITIEOTS ncirrd 13=]
e indwo-lieday 2 julepy dinb3 sdo - viz'gry 920z Atenugad Aundeg 1aghQ
o' Jleday g el ‘dinb3 23WQ - ZLT'BkY 920z Aerugad Aunoag JeghD 920Z/40120 v BE
oo indwog-iledsy g juely dinbg sdo - pLZ8yY 9Z0Z Aderuga 4 J9A0osIq auosuyuag
000y Jeday g JuleW ‘dinb3 200 - Z1Z Yy 920T Ateniga4 oA008I0 suoBUNUSS BEDEILOED toask L |
HELE indwo-sieday 2 juew dinb3g sdo - b1z ary 9z0Z Meniged GOt oW HOSOIOIN
LBk Jredey ' Juien ‘dinb3 @00 - ZLT BYY 920z Alerugad Gog 00 JOSoLIN 9202/10/20 Loaar ]
"B indwo-neday g juep dinb3 sdo - pLZ8YY 9z0z Aenuer dnyoeg ano))
glee- lleday g Wiel ‘dinb3 o0 - Z1Z'8ry 9202 Aenuer dmjoeg A0 8202110120 roESr ng
i i ndwod-ieday % el dinbg sdp - y1LZ8ver 920¢ Aeruge 4 poddng snoojuolLIo)
05°26- Jiedey g Juiely ‘dinb3 220 - gLz erYy 920z Ateruga poddng snoojuowwo) 9202/L0/20 0089% g
junowy pred Junoasy oury ey L] iy adiy
9z02 ‘Z) Aenigad ybnoays z| Alenuep
sbunasyy 104 - pun4 Iajepp J1e3aq 4o9Yyo —

pund 1s1ep - f3oyiny Jajepp pue 1omas Bingsyouapald

Wd TP



O N N CEI O
& & o & F . o 2> 2 & &
> ¥ & KPP o ad N & A A & o @9 oyo, & &
& & . & . & . & . & . & . & \_,U/I/O/ &%/ aéoo \c,soo ,//@/4/. 8,4@@ d@o 82«0 . S . RS d/% ; W ; & . o
Aao owco A\ro nwr0 80 0 A\(o 0 0 0 80 éo 80 0 0 \co A\ro 80 0 0 \%
_ - 00°0$
_ — — — f_ _— —_ __ i —— —— —— — 7 —7 — _' 00°000°00T$
00°000°002S
00°000°00€$
00°000°00%S
00°000°00SS
00°000°009$
J21epA B 12M3S B
00°000°00£$

sa|qeAeq



J3GBACN

12003130

laquiaidag

1snN8ny

Ajng

auny

Al

suojjeo

judy

yalew

Aenigad

Alenueg

0002680

520¢
‘1aquiada(

000V8T°LT

000°000'S

000°000°0T

000°000°ST

000°000'0C

000'000°S¢

000°000°0€



FSWA

Financial Statement

January 12, 2026 through February 12, 2026

Beginning Balance
Deposits

Payables
Payroll Deduction R
Account Ending Balance

$952,494.23
$250,398.92
$(144,300.33)

_ $(14,415.56)
$1,044,177.26

Fulton Water Checking Account

Beginning Balance $158,283.77
Deposits B $216,094.63
Payables - $(236,824.46)
Payroll Deduction - = $(14,325.07)
Account Ending Balance B $123,228.87
Fulton Water Project Fund Account o O
Beginning Balance $718,1-0_ﬁ
Deposits B N - -
Payables _ . $-
Interest . $1,524.75 |
Account Ending Balance ) B ____$719,632.06
Fulton Sewer P;Bject Fund Account - -

Beginning Balance - B $157,807.95
Deposits s 1
Payables B $-
Interest ) B $335.07
Account Ending Balance - $158,14_13.02
Fulton Sewer Projeét Fund CD . :
Balance 04/09/2008 . . oo 5 - __-$34_l4,763.89l
Fulton Payroll Chéck_ip_g_ﬁccount N )
Begirlin‘g Balance . ] $1,083.43
Deposits - $28,740.63
Payables - Payroll - $(26,750.81)
Payables - Liabilities - $(1,989.82)
Account Ending Balance $1,083.43

TOTAL ALL ACCOUNTS

$2,391,028.47

1_Qg_bt

Current Balance

Water

Sewer

PennVest Loan-27719 - Sewer-Mo . - $15,541.88 - 1%

PennVest Loa_n—7138_6-8_e\_/ver_ -Mo. - $57,5645.54 -2.51% |

Tc_:_ta! _ert

$0.00

$5,281,673.18

$2,025,253.21

$7,306,926.39

All Total Debt

~ $7,306,926.39




Office Report
February 16, 2026

Action Items
Does the Board approve to issue the sewer permit for Sherene Weaver at 534 Greble Rd, Lebanon?

General Information
MCB Disposal has submitted a quote for waste removal.

Comcast submitted a renewal for our internet/phone contract.
Fredericksburg sewer/water late notices were mailed 2/12/26.

The network extender through Verizon which is located at 1 FSWA Lane has stopped working. A
replacement was sent at no cost.

Requested the lien on 18 Kreider Dr Jonestown be satisfied as the account has been paid.

A letter was received from Zimmerman Law Office in regards to the Farmer’s Pride Airport LLC water
usage and billing.

Ongoing Business
Treatment, collection and conveyance certificate for the Sewage Planning Module Exemption

signature requested from Chrisland Engineering for Dale Yingst -Paimyra Homes, Inc expansion of
96 EDU's. Signed at 8/19/24 Board meeting.

Will Serve Letters for sewer and water design adequacy of 96 EDU’s were mailed.

Request for 32 EDU’s from COLA at a cost of $75,600 Palmyra paid COLA tapping fees 11/6/25.
Check was mailed to COLA. 11/17/25 Board approved 32 EDU’s sewer/water fees for FSWA,
reviewed annually. (no change)

Dave Hanula, with Everlasting Rock and Hennick Construction proposed a 45 dwelling unit along
Center St and Poplar St. Hanover Engineering, on behalf of Mr. Hanula are requesting confirmation
of public sanitary sewer and public water capacity and service for the project. The Board made a
motion to have FSWA Engineer and Solicitor speak with Hanover Engineering regarding water
capacity and negotiating directly with COLA to obtain permanent capacity. No change

Bell and Evans submitted documentation for the conditional approval given on 8/18/25 for the
sewer/water request at 109 Fredericksburg Rd, Logistic Center Truck Garage. | have forwarded this
information to SESI for review. Master water and sewer agreement still needed.



Commercial / Residential
Fgm Water / Sewer
e —

e Connection Application and Permit

Permit No.: ﬁ/ 'p?ga/}é
Date: _ //t8/Ar”

Property Owner: :gy«i‘%é/v/é Lzt

Property Location: $ 3 (A2 A/ 'Aéf_"’/f/w(&(f /‘f” /284y

Person or Firm to perform proposed connection(s): /h"/LCﬂéf;&'/b'—Lzﬂ( t,'/ldlf_,.. Ao,

(name)
G219 S aLuW/ch/,/)J,
/e pp il SEET, e -
N)-PvGIers

(telephone)
X Attached are plans and specifications for the proposed connection
Z Plans reviewed by Engineering Date approved: Iﬁ/Z(D (26
X| Connection fee received Amount: _H (X0 i Date: Z // zlze
Bethel / Swatara Twp. contacted Name: __ Date:

In consideration of the granting of this permit the undersigned agrees:

1. To accept and abide by all provision and regulation of the several Ordinances of Bethel
Township pertinent to this connection and all provisions and regulations of all future pertinent
Ordinances.

2. To maintain the building sewer / water service at no expense to the Fredericksburg Sewer &
Water Authority or Bethel Township.

3. To notify the Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority when the building sewer / water service
is ready for inspection and connection, but prior to any portion of the work being backfilled.

4. Annual estimated consumption (commercial only) T §2) 5285
4 g
Signature: ///ﬂ’}%% Mﬂ.@, ] Signature:>< 9;14* e /%'\r'«_/
\_Tﬁedericksgfg\s/e'wer& Water Authority) (Applicant)
Signature: Date:

(Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority Inspector)



18

MCB Disposa REVISED QUOTE

135 Fort Henry Rd
Bethel PA 19507

717-644-5343 DATE 2/9/2026

TO

Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority
113 East Main Street
Fredericksburg, PA 17026

Description Amount
Roll Off Dumpster weekly empty $350.00
Per Ton $82.00

If you have any questions concerning this quote contact | 717-644-5343 |

Thank you for your business!



Dot Stubblebine

e e e ——
From: MCB <mcbhdisposal@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, February 12, 2026 12:26 PM
To: Dot Stubblebine
Subject: Re: Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority
Hello,

Ok yes we would be able to meet you at $300.

Yes that would work. When would it be a good time for me to meet him over there?

Thank you,
Wynn McBratney
MCB Disposal



February 16, 2026 - Operations Report

*Items requiring board action*

S1. | am seeking FSWA Board approval to have GES begin implementing a SCADA system
upgrade for the Little Swatara Creek WWTP. This will include migrating the existing
SCADA software from Rockwell FactoryTalk to Ignition Perspective. It will also include a
new SCADA client workstation. The cost of this project is $57,190. This project will
modernize our operations, provide integration with our existing water system SCADA
and provide local support for any problems in the future. A quote and a purchase order
are included on pages 4-7 of this report.

S2. 1 am seeking FSWA Board approval to have GES begin implementing a new SCADA
system for the Monroe Valley WWTP. It will also include a new SCADA client workstation.
The cost of this project is $16,970. The benefits of this project are the same as with item
S1., but also creates an entirely new SCADA system. Currently, we only have a simple
touchscreen to operate and monitor this plant. A quote and a purchase order are
included in pages 8-11 of this report.

$3. 1 am seeking FSWA Board approval to have ERD, Ltd. Repair 2 of our faulty UV ballasts
to restock our spare parts inventory. The cost is $2,570. The repaired units will come
with a 3-year warranty. A quote and a purchase order are included in pages 12-13 of this
report.

*General Sewer Information*

2025-2026 Little Swatara Creek WWTP Nutrient Production

Phosphorus 974 Pounds Annually Nltrogen 11,531 Pounds Annually
Month Discharged by Tﬁhl H’En’mm’iﬁg
FSWA (Ibs) | for 2025-26 (Ibs)
Oct 81 245.8 728.2 961 1121.2 10409.8
Nov 81 17.7 710.5 961 233.8 10176.0
Dec 81 12.1 698.4 961 361.5 9814.5
Jan 81 11.8 686.6 961 406.3 9408.2
Feb 81 961
Mar 81 961
Apr 81 961
May 81 961
Jun 81 961
Jul a1 961
Aug 81 961
Sep 81 961
Total 974 287.4 686.6 11531 2122.8 9408.2

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 1 of 13



1. The three WWTP’s are all operating well and within:

a. Little Swatara Creek Wastewater Plant [LSC]- The plant continues to run well
with the biological nutrient reduction processes working very efficiently. Because of
this we have been able to decrease our coagulant chemical dose even further. (See
ltem 2.)

b. Monroe Valley Wastewater Plant [MV]-The plant is running very well.

c. Lickdale Wastewater Plant — The Plant is running very well.

2. As mentioned earlier in this report, we have been able to continually lower our daily
coagulant chemical feed [DelPAC] because the phosphorus accumulating organisms
[PAQ’s] are thriving with the longer cycle times that operating 3 basins affords us. At
the height of our phosphorus problems, during the late summer and early fall of
2025, we were feeding as much as 60 gallons per day [gpd] of DelPAC. This was an
effort to reduce phosphorus concentrations in the effluent. By putting the third
reactor on and creating better conditions for the PAO’s, the DelPAC feed rate has
been reduced to 14 gpd. At $4.07 per gallon of DelPAC this is a savings $186.73 per
day. However, running the third reactor uses more electricity than running just 2
SBR’s. | calculated the increased cost of electricity for the first 3 months of running 3
SBR’s versus the same period last year, running only 2 SBR’s. From October 25,
2024, to January 26, 2025, the average daily cost of electricity at the LSC plant was
$255.97. From October 24, 2025, to January 25, 2026, the average daily cost of
electricity was $317.21. This is an increase of $61.24 per day. This means that
running 3 SBR’s saves $125.49 per day when accounting for chemical costs and

electricity. (Note: This does not account for manhours for increased process control time nor
wear and tear on the equipment.)

3. I have provided the files and maps and other preliminary details about the paving
project to SESI to put together a bid package. This project is to repair areas of
subsidence around the sewer mains and laterals in the south Fredericksburg
collection system.

4. During the cold weather snap of late January into early February, the check valves
on the waste lines for SBR#1 and SBR#2 froze in the closed position, not allowing
those reactors to waste excess solids. We purchased 2 heat traces and installed
them on each riser pipe and check valve body, which solved the problem.

5. We have been working on rebuilding the #2 process blower at the LSC WWTP. (Work
continues.)

*General Water Information*

1. The water system is running well.

2. One of the radios in the communication link between the East Tank and the American
Legion Valve Pit failed. We had to purchase a replacement pair of radios from Digikey.
The cost was $515.56. We installed the parts upon arrival, and the radio link has been
reestablished.

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 2 of 13



3. The colorimeter component of the online chlorine analyzer at the East Tank failed. We
had to purchase a replacement unit from Hach. The cost was $641.17. We installed the
parts upon arrival, and the unit is back online.

4. Hydrant 44 at the corner of South Center Street and Walnut Street was run over again
by a tractor trailer in route to Sherwin Williams. The event was witnessed by a nearby
homeowner who was able to get pictures of the truck and license plate. Our crew
handled the repair of the hydrant, and the office has reported the event to the PA
State Police.

5. It appears that we have a small leak somewhere in the system. We will continue to
investigate this by deploying our Gutermann leak correlators. (Work continues.)

6. | have been coordinating with the engineers on details about the new filter plant
installation. (Work continues.)

7. The Lebanon Meter Pit 10” GA Pressure Regulator/Sustaining Valve is not closing
properly. It normally restricts the pressure from "83 psi coming in to "60 psi out. It has
been climbing for the last 2-3 months and is now at "78 psi going out. | spoke with a
technician from the Edwin Elliot Co., (the vendor that reps GA valves) and he provided
me with a recommended parts list for us to try repair the valve. | ordered the parts,
and we will install them. The parts have arrived. (0n the list to be completed yet.)

8. |continue to train the operations staff in the specifics of water operations.

9. We continue to assist the office staff with meter reading, data logging, etc.

*General Information*
1. I'have been training Rodger Bollinger in the duties of assistant operations manager.
2. Bell & Evans is in the process of a large upgrade at Plant 2. (Work continues.)

3. The Bell & Evans transmission line from Plant 1 to Plant 3 is progressing quickly. Once
this line is in, it will reduce their water demand on FSWA. (Work continues.)

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 3 of 13



FSWA. Purchase Order

FREDERICHSOURAG, PA

Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority

Vendor GES Automation Technology

470 Friendship Road
Harrisburg, PA 17111

Date: 02/12/2026

P.O. #: 021 22026_tSC¥SewerSCADA_Upgrczde

Customer ID:

Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority
113 East Main Street

P.O. Box 161

Fredericksburg , PA 17026

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 4 of 13

(717) 234-8733 (717} 865-0774
Shipping Method Shipping Terms Delivery Date
n'a ffa nfa
by iltem # Description Job Unit Price Line Total
v SCADA system and SCADA client
tee camputer. Quote with details attached. e $ A0 AN
1. Flease send hwe copies of vour invaice. Substotal| § 57, 190000
2. Enter tis order in occordance with Ihe prices, lerms, dellvery Soles Tow
method, and specificafions lkled above,
3. Plecse nofifiy usimmediately if you are unable fo ship as Total| § 57.1%0.00
specified.
4. Send all corespondence to:
Office Manager
PO Box 161 Authorized by Date
Fredericksburg, PA 17026
(717) 865-7452
(717) 865-0779
PIFE Mgin 51 PO Box 161, Fiadetickib rgL FA 1702 FESS-FASE (717} BAS-LTTT aaminishatoriiea onlirg ried




GOLD

C%_Eg =¥:¥W System Integrator

A ROCKWELL AUTOHATION PARTNER

AUTOMATION TECHNOLOGY
Trusted Solutions, Exceptional Service Igmho ‘/= @ ISNetworld’

" MEMBER CONTRACTOR'

470 Friendship Rd., Harrisburg, PA 17111

717.236.8733 ges-automation.com

Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority November 4, 2025
Dusty Keller

113 East Miain St, P.O. Box 161

Fredericksburg, PA 17023

Re: FSWA WWTP HMI Upgrade
Mr. Dusty Keller:
We are pleased to offer the following proposal for the FSWA WWTP HMI Upgrade project.

Inductive Automation’s Ignition platform provides flexible, real time data access for operators and
administrators through any modern web browser, tablet, or smartphone. This upgrade will enhance the
system performance, improve maintainability, and allow for future scalability while retaining the
operator interface currently in use.

Scope of Work:
GES to provide the following services:

= Replace the existing HMI running RSView32 with (1) Dell PC utilizing the Ignition Software
= HMI Development

o Convert the existing Aqua-Aerobic RSView32 application into a new Ignition Perspective
based HMI, migrating existing functionality and user interface elements to the new
application

#  System Functionality Testing & Commissioning

Materials Supplied:
s (1) Dell Micro PC

o Includes (1) Monitor
# (1) Uninterruptible Power Supply

Exceptions and Clarifications:
* This proposal assumes the use of FSWA’s existing Ignition license.

= FSWA to provide GES with administrative access on all required servers and computers.

= GES cannot be held responsible for production delays that hinder the ability to complete our
scope and/or testing.

s  GES cannot be held responsible for delays due to 3™ party coordination.

#= This proposal is based on pricing as of this date. The cost of raw materials, equipment and
supplies continues to be volatile (notably tariffs). If GES is unable to purchase these items for
this project at today’s values, we will be forced to pass along cost increases.

#  Workto be performed during normal business hours, Monday-Friday, 7:00AM to 5:00PM, non-
holidays. Overtime has not been factored in this estimate and will be billed additionally.

¢ labor rates are valid for 30 days.

DCN: 20251029-GES-FSWA WWTP HMI Upgrade.docx Revision: 0
FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 5 of 13



= State sales tax is not included in project cost.
# Delivery is subject to availability at the time of order.

Profect Cost:

e

The project costs provided herein are on a fixed price contract basis.

Total Cost 5 57,190.00

Payrient Terms:
Monthly Progress billing

Net 30 days each invoice
FOB Origin, Freight Prepaid & Add
Subject to GES Automation Technology, Inc. Standard Terms and Conditions

Please send purchase order(s) along with this quote to Sales@GEStech.com to ensure your order is
processed accordingly.

Thank you for this opportunity and if we can be of any further assistance, please contact our office.

Sincerely,

Cormick Myers
Inside Sales Associate

GES Automation Technology

Trusted Solutions, Exceptional Service
470 Friendship Road, Harrisburg, PA 17111
Direct Dial: 717.909.6225

DCN: 20251029-GES-FSWA WWTP HMI Upgrade.docx Revision: O
FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 6 of 13



STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITHOINS

{STD-A-0099 REVISION K —JANUARY 1, 2016)

GES Automation Technology, lnc. provides this statement of Standard
Terms and Conditions as representation of our preferred business
practices. These Terms and Conditions shall apply unless otherwise
specified on a per project basis. Specifications to the contrary must be
written and signed by an authorized representative of GES Automation
Technology, Inc.

PRICTING

All price quotations (Safes Proposals) for GES Automation Technology,
Inc. products and services provided hereunder are valid for thirty (30)
days unless otherwise noted. Published prices are thereafter subject
to change without notice.

STANDARD INVOICING & REMITTANMCE TERMS

Invoicing will be monthly with payment due within thirty (30} days
upon receipt of invoice. Invoicing and payment shall be in United
States dollars drawn on U.S. accounts. Customer will be invoiced for
any applicable taxes on the sale of services and/or products. Any
noncompliance with this provision shall permit GES Automation
Technology, Inc. to assess additional charges incurred in conversion
and processing of the payment.

Undisputed accounts not paid within thirty (30) days of date of invoice
shall be deemed delinguent and are subject to interest charges of
eighteen percent {18%) per annum on the unpaid balance (or the
maximum rate allowed by law, if such rate is less than 18%). GES
Automation Technology, Inc. reserves the right to suspend services to
a delinquent account without prior notice. Customer authorizes GES
Automation Technology, Inc. to send notice of delinquent account
status by means of the most expedient method available as determined
by GES Automation Technology, Inc. Should Customer be delinquent
in the payment of any invoices, Customer shall be liable for all costs of
collection incurred by GES Automation Technology, Inc., including
collection agency fees and reasonable attorney's fees, as well as court
Losks

FREIGHT & SHIPMENTS

All shipments for domestic sales are F.O.B. GES Automation
Technology, Inc., 2151 Greenwood Street, Harrisburg, PA 17104, GES
Automation Technology, Inc. shall have satisfied all delivery
obligations, and possession of all goods sold hereunder shall be
deemed to pass to Customer upon delivery to the carrier at point of
shipment, whereupon Customer assumes all risk of loss or damage to
the goods and responsibility for shipping and insurance that may have
been secured by GES Automation Technology, Inc. Any freight and
delivery charges paid by GES Automation Technology, Inc. in
connection with shipments to Customer will be passed on to Customer,
Customer shall notify GES Automation Technology, Inc. in writing
relative to any shipment shortage within ten (10) days of receipt of
shipment. GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall not be liable for
delays in delivery.

GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall have the right to cancel any
order or to refuse or delay shipment if Customer fails to meet payment
terms or if there is any materially adverse change in Customer’s
financial status.

SOFTWARE PURCHASE/REGISTRATION

By accepting a GES Sales Proposal Contract, Customer authorizes GES
to purchase/register third-party software on behalf of Customer as
required under the terms of the Contract.

TRAVEL & LIVING EXPENSES

All GES Automation Technology, Inc. projects subject to Travel and
Living Expenses shall be subject to the foliowing terms and conditions.
GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall provide notice to the Customer
in the Sales Proposal when projects are subject to Travel and Living
Expenses.

TRANEL EXPEMSES

Customer is subject to the following Travel Expenses: [1] Trave! Time
shall be charged from the point of origin to the point of destination per
GES Service Rates, [2] Transportation Expenses - including, but not
limited to: transportation, fares, gratuities, and service charges shall be
charged at cost plus five percent (5%) handling fee, [3] Mileage - shall
be charged, at the current standard IRS rate, and [4] Travel Rate ~ shall
be charged according to GES Service Rates, except where overnight
travel is required and services shall be billed at the Field Services rate
with an eight (8) hour per day minimum,

LIVING EXPEMSES

Customer is subject to the following Living Expenses: [1) Minimum
Work Day — GES Automation Technology, Inc. employees shall charge a
minimum eight {8) hour work day, per GES Service Rates, for each day
in route to/from or at the worksite, and [2] Lodging Expenses
including, but not limited to: lodging, meals, gratuities, and service
charges shall be charged at cost plus five percent {5%) handling fee.
SOETWARE LICENSE

OWNERSHIF AND GRANT OF SOFTWARE LICENSE

GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall maintain ownership of all
software (including source and object code, derivative products, and
documentation thereof) developed by GES Automation Technology,
Inc. and shall grant a non-exclusive license to install and use said
safresare Lo the Custamer

GES Automation Technology, Inc. developed software constitutes an
unpublished work and contains valuable trade secrets and proprietary
information belonging to GES Automation Technology, Inc. The
software may not be disclosed without the express written permission
of GES Automation Technology, Inc., except as required for proper
operation or training by the Customer. Customer shall not have any
right, title, or interest in or to any such software or copies thereof
except as provided herein, and further shall secure and protect all
soltwane ponslstens wish the Licanse

MODIFICATIONS

GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall maintain ownership of all
modifications to software developed by GES Automation Technology,
Inc. including, but not limited to: error corrections, bug fixes, patches
or other updates to the software. GES Automation Technology, inc.
shall grant a non-exclusive license to install and use said software
wendificatic

1e Ehes Cuis

FROTECTION OF SOFTWARE
Customer will not remove any form of this Software Licensing
Statement provided in any form physical or electronic by GES
Automation Technology, Inc.

CONFIGENTIALITY
Acknowledgment: Customer hereby acknowledges and agrees that the
software provided hereunder constitute and contains valuable
proprietary products and trade secrets of GES Automation Technology,
Inc., embodying substantial creative efforts and confidential
information, ideas, and expressions. Accordingly, Customer agrees ta
treat {and take precautions to ensure that its employees treat) said
software as confidential in accordance with the requirements and
oo inng set forth |

Maintenance of Confidential Information: Each party agrees to keep
confidential all confidential information disclosed to it by the other
party in accordance herewith, and to protect the confidentiality
thereof in the same manner it protects the confidentiality of similar
information and data of its own {at all times exercising at least a
reasonable degree of care in the protection of confidential
information); provided, however, that neither party shall have any such
obligation with respect to use of disclosure to others not party to this
Statement of such confidential information as can be established to: {(a)
have been known publicly; (b} have been known generally in the
industry before communication by the disclosing party to the recipient;
{c) have become known publicly, without fault on the part of the
recipient, subsequent to disclosure by the disclosing party; (d) have
been known otherwise by the recipient before communication by the
disclosing party; or (e) have been received by the recipient without any
obligation of confidentiality from a source {(other than the disclosing
party) lawfully having possession of such information.

Injunctive Relief: Licensee acknowledges that the unauthorized use,
transfer or disclosure of the software or copies thereof will (a)
substantially diminish the value to GES Automation Technology, Inc. of
the trade secrets and other proprietary interests that are the subject of
this License; {b) render GES Automation Technology, Inc. remedy at law
for such unauthorized use, disclosure or transfer inadequate; and {c}
cause irreparable injury in a short period of time, If Customer breaches
any of its obligations with respect to the use or confidentiality of the
software GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall be entitled to
equitable relief to protect its interests therein, including, but not
limited to, prefiminary and permanent injunctive relief.

WARRANTIES AND SUPERIOR RIGHTS

Ownership: GES Automation Technology, Inc. represents its belief that
it is the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in and to the
software described herein, and that it has the sole right to grant
licenses hereunder, and that it has not knowingly granted licenses
hereunder to any other entity that would restrict rights granted
hareundeay

OBLIGATIONS UNDER TERMINATION

Should this Software License be terminated for any reason Customer
shall cease and desist all use of the Software and shall return said
Software within thirty (30) day to GES Automation Technology, Inc.
(including all full or partial copies of the software, derivative products
and documentation in Customer’s possession or under its control).

WARRANTY

Limited Warranty: GES Automation Technology, Inc. represents and
warrants to Customer for a period of one (1) year from the date of
delivery that the Product when properly installed will perform
substantially as described in the Sales Proposal.

Limitations: Notwithstanding the warranty provisions set forth in the
Limited Warranty above, all of GES Automation Technology, Inc.
obligations with respect to such warranties shall be contingent on
Clstarmeass use of Ihe Produet in smcerdance with these Terms and
Conditions and in accordance with any instructions provided by GES
Automation Technology, Inc., as such instructions may be amended,
supplemented, or modified by GES Automation Technology, inc. from
time to time. GES Autormnation Technology, Inc. shall have no warranty
obligations with respect to any failures of the Product which are the
result of (a) accident, abuse, misapplication, extreme power surge or
extreme electromagnetic field, {b) modification of the Product by the

DCN: 20251029-GES-FSWA WWTP HMI Upgrade.docx Revision: 0
FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 7 of 13

Customer, or (c) the installation of any software program, patch, or
service pack, except as performed by GES Automation Technology, Inc.

Licensee’s Sole Remedy: GES Automation Technology, Inc. entire
liability and Customer’s exclusive remedy shall be, at GES Automation
Technology, Inc, option, either (a) return of the price paid or (b} repair
or replacement of the Product; provided GES Autoration Technology,
Inc. receives written notice from Customer during the warranty period
of a breach of warranty. Any replacement Product will be warranted
for the remainder of the original warranty period or ninety {90) days,
whichever is longer.

Destlamnes of Warranties: Tha warranties statad haresn are the sale and
the exclusive warranties offered by GES Automation Technology, Inc.
There are no other warranties respecting the Product or Services
provided hereunder, either express or implied, including but not
limited to any warranty of design, or fitness for a particular purpose,
even if GES Automation Technology, Inc. has been informed of such
purpose. No agent of GES Automation Technology, Inc. is authorized
to alter or exceed the warranty obligations as set forth herein

Limitation of Liability: Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the
consideration, which GES Automation Technology, Inc. is charging
hereunder, does not include any consideration for assumption by GES
Automation Technolagy, Inc. of the risk of Customer’s consequential or
incidental damages which may arise in connection with Customer’s use
of the Product. Accordingly, Customer agrees that GES Automation
Technology, Inc. shall not be responsible to Customer for any loss-of-
profit, indirect, incidental, special, or consequential damages arising
out of the licensing or use of the Product. Any provision herein to the
contrary notwithstanding, the maximum liability of GES Automation
Technology, Inc. to any person, firm or corporation whatsoever arising
out of or in the connection with any license, use or other employment
of any Product delivered to Customer hereunder, whether such liability
arises from any claim based on breach or repudiation of contract,
warranty, tort or otherwise, shall in no case exceed the actual price
paid to GES Automation Technology, Inc. by Customer for the Product
whose license, use, or other employment gives rise to the liability. The
parties acknowledge that the limitations set forth in this statement are
integral to the amount of consideration levied in connection with the
license, use, or other employment of the Product and any services
rendered hereunder and that, were GES Automation Technology, Inc.
to assume any further liability other than as set forth herein, such
consideration would of necessity be set substantially higher.

DEFALLT AND TERMINATION

Events of Default: These Terms and Conditions may be terminated by
the non-defaulting party if any of the following events of default occur:
(a) if a party materially fails to perform or comply with these Terms and
Conditions or any provision hereof; {b) if either party fails to strictly
comply with the provisions of confidentiality; (c) if a party becomes
insolvent or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they
mature, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) if a
petition under any foreign, state, or United States bankruptcy act,
receivership statute, or the like, as they now exist, or as they may be
amended, is filed by a party; or (e} if such a petition is filed by any third
party, or an application for a receiver is made by anyone and such
petition or application is not resolved favorably within ninety (90) days.

Effective Date of Termination: Termination due to a material breach of
any of these Terms and Conditions shall be effective upon notice.

MOTICES

All notices, authorizations, and requests in connection with this
Agreement shall be deemed given: (a) five days after being deposited
in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, returnreceipt
requested, or {b) one day after being sent by overnight courier, charges
prepaid, with a confirming fax; and addressed as first set forth above
or to such other address as the party to receive the notice or request
so designates by written notice to the other.

EOVERNING LAW, IURISSCTIGN, AND VENUE

The laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania shall govern the
validity, interpretation, construction and performance of these Terms
and Conditions. The Courts of the Commonwealth Pennsylvania and
the Courts of Dauphin County, Pennsyivania (or, if there is exclusive
federal jurisdiction, the United States District Court for the District of
Pennsylvania) shall have exclusive jurisdiction and venue over any
dispute arising out of these Terms and Conditions, and the Customer
hereby consents to the jurisdiction of such courts.

SEVERABILITY

If any provision of these Terms and Conditions shall be held by a court
of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect



SWA

sewer & waler -u;hm,

FREDEAICKARURG. FA

Purchase Order

Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority

Vendor

GES Automation Technology

470 Friendship Road
Harrisburg, PA 17111

Date: 02/12/2026
P.O. #:02122026_MV_SewerSCADA_New
Customer [D:

Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority
113 East Main Street

P.O. Box 161

Fredericksburg , PA 17026

(717) 236-8733 (717) 865-0774
Shipping Method Shipping Terms Delivery Date
nfa n/a nfa
Qty ltem # Description Job Unit Price Line Total
T M SCADA systam and SCADA client o
. / . o7l 14,270
s camputer. Guole with details attached. . 439 il ¥ 16,558 S
1. Please send two copies of your invoice. Subtotal| % 16,970.00
2. Enter this order in accordance with the prices, terms, delivery Sales Tax
method, and specifications listed above.
3. Please notifiy us immediately if you are unable to ship as Total| § 16,970.00
specified.
4. Send all comespondence to;
Office Manager
PO Box 161 Authorized by Dafe

Fredericksburg, PA 17026
(717) 865-7452
(717) 865-0779

113 E. Main St., PO Box 161, Fredericksburg, PA 17026 (717) 865-7452 (717} 865-0779 administrator@fswaonline.net

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 8 of 13




GOLD

‘% E s =¥.W System Integrator

A ROCKWELL AUTOMATION PARTNER

AUTOMATION TECHNOLCGY
Trusted Solutions, Exceptional Service i lgnition‘/:‘ @ ISNetworld’

MEMBER CONTRACTOR

470 Friendship Rd., Harrisburg, PA 17111

717.236.8733 ges-automation.com

Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority November 4, 2025
Dusty Keller

113 East Main St, P.O. Box 161

Fredericksburg, PA 17023

Re: Monroe Valley WWTP HMI Upgrade

Mr. Dusty Keller:
We are pleased to offer the following proposal for the Monroe Valley WWTP HMI Upgrade project.

The existing aging PanelView HMI is approaching the end of its dependable service life and provides
limited functionality compared to modern systems. GES recommends upgrading to a PC based Ignition
Edge Client, offering improved performance, simplified maintenance, and long term scalability while
maintaining a familiar operating interface.

Scope of Work:
GES to provide the following services:

s Replace the existing PanelView with a Dell PC running Ignition Edge, utilizing a Hope Touch
Screen interface

s Establish a secure Site-to-Site VPN connection between Monroe Valley and the Main Plant for
project synchronization and remote access

= Configure the Monroe Valley HMI to be accessible from the Main Plant Ignition Gateway,
enabling centralized management and visibility

= HMI Development

o Convert and recreate the existing functionality and screen navigation within Ignition
Edge

+ System Functionality Testing & Commissioning

Materials Supplied:
s (1) Inductive Automation, Ignition Edge License

¢ (1) Dell Micro PC
= (1) Hope Industrial Systems, Touch Screen

# (1) VPN Router Appliance

DCN: 20251029-GES-Monroe Valley WWTP HMI Upgrade.docx Revision: 0
FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 9 of 13



Exceptions and Clarifications:
* FSWAto coordinate with Comcast or others for installation of a dedicated internet
connection.

* FSWA to provide GES with administrative access on all required servers and computers.

* GES cannot be held responsible for production delays that hinder the ability to complete our
scope and/or testing.

®*  GES cannot be held responsible for delays due to 3" party coordinatjon.

® This proposal is based on pricing as of this date. The cost of raw materials, equipment and
supplies continues to be volatile (notably tariffs). If GES is unable to purchase these items for
this project at today’s values, we will be forced to pass along cost increases.

* Workto be performed during normal business hours, Monday-Friday, 7:00AM to 5:00PM, non-
holidays. Overtime has not been factored in this estimate and will be billed additionally,

* Labor rates are valid for 30 days.
® State sales tax is not included in project cost.

* Delivery is subject to availability at the time of order.

Froject Cost:
The project costs provided herein are on a fixed price contract basis.

Total Cost S 16,970.00

Pavment Terms:
Monthly Progress billing

Net 30 days each invoice
FOB Origin, Freight Prepaid & Add
Subject to GES Automation Technology, Inc. Standard Terms and Conditions

Please send purchase order(s) along with this quote to Sales@GEStech.com to ensure your order is
processed accordingly.

Thank you for this opportunity and if we can be of any further assistance, please contact our office.

Sincerely,

Cormick Myers

Inside Sales Associate

GES Automation Technology
Trusted Solutions, Exceptional Service
470 Friendship Road, Harrisburg, PA 17111
Direct Dial: 717.909.6225

DCN: 20251029-GES-Monroe Valley WWTP HMI Upgrade.docx Revision: 0

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 10 of 13



STANDARD TEARS AND CONDITHING

{STD-A-0099 REVISION K — JANUARY 1, 2016)

GES Automation Technology, Inc. provides this statement of Standard
Terms and Conditions as representation of our preferred business
practices. These Terms and Conditions shall apply unless otherwise
specified on a per project basis. Specifications to the contrary must be
written and signed by an authorized representative of GES Automation
Technology, Inc,

PRICING

All price quotations (Sales Proposals) for GES Automation Technology,
Inc. products and services provided hereunder are valid for thirty (30)
days unless otherwise noted. Published prices are thereafter subject
to change without notice.

STANDARD INVEHCING & REMITTANCE TEAMS

Invoicing will be monthly with payment due within thirty (30} days
upon receipt of invoice. Invoicing and payment shall be in United
States doflars drawn on U4 accounts.  Customar will be immiced for
any applicable taxes on the sale of services and/or products. Any
noncompliance with this provision shall permit GES Automation
Technology, Inc. to assess additional charges incurred in conversion
and processing of the payment.

Undisputed accounts not paid within thirty (30) days of date of invoice
shall be deemed delinquent and are subject to interest charges of
eighteen percent (18%) per annum on the unpaid balance (or the
maximum rate allowed by law, if such rate is less than 18%). GES
Automation Technology, Inc. reserves the right to suspend services to
a delinquent account without prior notice. Customer authorizes GES
Automation Technology, Inc. to send notice of delinquent account
status by means of the most expedient method available as determined
by GES Automation Technology, Inc. Should Customer be delinquent
in the payment of any invoices, Customer shall be liable for all costs of
collection incurred by GES Automation Technology, Inc., including
collection agency fees and reasonable attorney's fees, as well as court
(EiLELS

FREIGHT & SHIPMENTS

All shipments for domestic sales are F.0.B. GES Automation
Technology, Inc., 2151 Greenwood Street, Harrisburg, PA 17104. GES
Automation Technology, Inc. shall have satisfied all delivery
obligations, and possession of all goods sold hereunder shall be
deemed to pass to Customer upon delivery to the carrier at point of
shipment, whereupon Customer assumes all risk of loss or damage to
the goods and responsibility for shipping and insurance that may have
been secured by GES Automation Technology, Inc. Any freight and
delivery charges paid by GES Automation Technology, Inc. in
connection with shipments to Customer will be passed on to Customer,
Customer shall notify GES Automation Technology, Inc. in writing
relative to any shipment shortage within ten {10) days of receipt of
shipment. GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall not be liable for
delays in delivery.

GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall have the right to cancel any
order or to refuse or delay shipment if Customer fails to meet payment
terms or if there is any materially adverse change in Customer’s

linangcial stagus

SOFTWARE PURCHASE/REGISTRATION

By accepting a GES Sales Proposal Contract, Customer authorizes GES
to purchase/register third-party software on behalf of Customer as
required under the terms of the Contract.

TRAVEL & LIVING EXPERSES

All GES Automation Technology, Inc. projects subject to Travel and
Living Expenses shall be subject to the following terms and conditions.
GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall provide natice to the Customer
in the Sales Proposal when projects are subject to Travel and Living
Expenses.

TRAVEL EXPENSES

Customer is subject to the following Travel Expenses: {1] Trave! Time -
shall be charged from the point of origin to the point of destination per
GES Service Rates, [2] Transportation Expenses - including, but not
limited to: transportation, fares, gratuities, and service charges shall be
charged at cost plus five percent (5%) handling fee, [3) Mileage - shall
be charged, at the current standard IRS rate, and {4] Travel Rate —shall
be charged according to GES Service Rates, except where overnight
travel is required and services shall be billed at the Field Services rate
with an eight (8) hour per day minimum.

LIVING EEFENSES

Customer is subject to the following Living Expenses: [1} Minimum
Work Day — GES Automation Technology, Inc. employees shall charge a
minimum eight (8) hour work day, per GES Service Rates, for each day
in route to/from or at the worksite, and [2] Lodging Expenses
including, but not limited to: lodging, meals, gratuities, and service
charges shall be charged at cost plus five percent {5%) handling fee.
SOFTWARE LICEMSE

MANERSHIF AND GRANT OF SOFTWARE LICEMNSE

GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall maintain ownership of all
software {including source and object code, derivative products, and
documentation thereof) developed by GES Automation Technology,
Inc. and shall grant a non-exclusive ticense to install and use said
saltwasn L0-this Custosmas

DCN: 20251029-GES-Monroe Valley WWTP HMI Upgrade.

GES Automation Technology, Inc. developed software constitutes an
unpublished work and contains valuable trade secrets and proprietary
information belonging to GES Automation Technology, Inc. The
software may not be disclosed without the express written permission
of GES Automation Technology, Inc., except as required for proper
operation or training by the Customer. Customer shall not have any
right, title, or interest in or to any such software or copies thereof
except as provided herein, and further shall secure and protect all
wnftwaro cansistent with this Ucensa

MOTIFICATIDNS

GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall maintain ownership of all
modifications to software developed by GES Automation Technology,
Inc. including, but not limited to: error corrections, bug fixes, patches
or other updates to the software. GES Automation Technology, Inc.
shall grant a non-exclusive license to install and use said software
madilications 1o the Custamer

PHOTECTION OF SOFTWARE
Customer will not remove any form of this Software Licensing
Statement provided in any form physical or electronic by GES
Automation Technology, Inc.

CONFIDENTIALITY

Acknowledgment: Customer hereby acknowledges and agrees that the
software provided hereunder constitute and contains valuable
proprietary products and trade secrets of GES Automation Technology,
Inc., embodying substantial creative efforts and confidential
information, ideas, and expressions. Accordingly, Customer agrees to
treat {and take precautions to ensure that its employees treat) said
software as confidential in accordance with the requirements and
conditions set forth herain

Maintenance of Confidential Information: Each party agrees to keep
confidential all confidential information disclosed to it by the other
party in accordance herewith, and to protect the confidentiality
thereof in the same manner it protects the confidentiality of similar
information and data of its own (at all times exercising at least a
reasonable degree of care in the protection of confidential
information); provided, however, that neither party shall have any such
obligation with respect to use of disclosure to others not party to this
Statement of such confidential information as can be established to: (a)
have been known publicly; (b} have been known generally in the
industry before communication by the disclosing party to the recipient;
{c) have become known publicly, without fault on the part of the
recipient, subsequent to disclosure by the disclosing party; {d) have
been known otherwise by the recipient before communication by the
disclosing party; or {e) have been received by the recipient without any
obligation of confidentiality from a source (other than the disclosing
party) lawfully having possession of such information.

Injunctive Relief: Licensee acknowledges that the unauthorized use,
transfer or disclosure of the software or copies thereof will {a)
substantially diminish the value to GES Automation Technology, Inc. of
the trade secrets and other proprietary interests that are the subject of
this License; (b} render GES Automation Technology, Inc. remedy at law
for such unauthorized use, disclosure or transfer inadequate; and {c)
cause irreparable injury in a short period of time. If Customer breaches
any of its obligations with respect to the use or confidentiality of the
software GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall be entitled to
equitable relief to protect its interests therein, including, but not
limited to, prefiminary and permanent injunctive relief.

WARRANTIES AND SUPERIOR REGHTS

Ownership: GES Automation Technology, Inc. represents its belief that
it is the owner of the entire right, title, and interest in and to the
software described herein, and that it has the sole right to grant
licenses hereunder, and that it has not knowingly granted licenses
hereunder to any other entity that would restrict rights granted
heraundar

CHLIGATHINS UNDER TERMIRATION

Should this Software License be terminated for any reason Customer
shall cease and desist all use of the Software and shall return said
Software within thirty (30) day to GES Automation Technology, Inc.
(including all full or partial copies of the software, derivative products
and documentation in Customer’s possession or under its control).
WARRANTY

Limited Warranty: GES Automation Technology, Inc. represents and
warrants to Customer for a period of one (1) year from the date of
delivery that the Product when properly installed will perform
substantially as described in the Sales Proposal.

Limitations: Notwithstanding the warranty provisions set forth in the
Limited Warranty above, all of GES Automation Technology, Inc
obligations with respect to such warranties shall be contingent on
Custamer's use ol (e Product in éccerdarce with thess Terms and
Conditions and in accordance with any instructions provided by GES
Automation Technology, Inc., as such instructions may be amended,
supplemented, or modified by GES Automation Technology, Inc. from
time to time. GES Automation Technology, Inc. shall have no warranty
obligations with respect to any failures of the Product which are the
result of (a) accident, abuse, misapplication, extreme power surge or
extreme electromagnetic field, {b) modification of the Product by the

docx Revision: 0

Customer, or {c) the installation of any software program, patch, or
service pack, except as performed by GES Automation Technology, Inc.

Licensee’s Sole Remedy: GES Automation Technology, Inc. entire
liability and Customer’s exclusive remedy shall be, at GES Automation
Technology, Inc. option, either (a) return of the price paid or (b) repair
or replacement of the Product; provided GES Automation Technology,
Inc. receives written notice from Customer during the warranty period
of a breach of warranty. Any replacement Product will be warranted
for the remainder of the original warranty period or ninety (90) days,
whichever is longer.

Disclaimer of Warranties: The warranties stated herein are the sole and
the exclusive warranties offered by GES Automation Technology, Inc,
There are no other warranties respecting the Product or Services
provided hereunder, either express or implied, including but not
limited to any warranty of design, or fitness for a particular purpose,
even if GES Automation Technology, Inc. has been informed of such
purpose. No agent of GES Automation Technology, Inc. is authorized
to alter or exceed the warranty obligations as set forth herein.

Limitation of Liability: Licensee acknowledges and agrees that the
consideration, which GES Automation Technology, Inc. is charging
hereunder, does not include any consideration for assumption by GES
Automation Technology, Inc. of the risk of Customer’s consequential or
incidental damages which may arise in connection with Customer’s use
of the Product. Accordingly, Customner agrees that GES Automation
Technology, Inc. shall not be responsible to Customer for any loss-of-
profit, indirect, incidental, special, or consequential damages arising
out of the licensing or use of the Product. Any provision herein to the
contrary notwithstanding, the maximum liability of GES Automation
Technology, Inc. to any person, firm or corporation whatsoever arising
out of or in the connection with any license, use or other employment
of any Product delivered to Customer hereunder, whether such liability
arises from any claim based on breach or repudiation of contract,
warranty, tort or otherwise, shall in no case exceed the actual price
paid to GES Automation Technology, Inc. by Customer for the Product
whose license, use, or other employment gives rise to the liability. The
parties acknowledge that the limitations set forth in this statement are
integral to the amount of consideration levied in connection with the
license, use, or other employment of the Product and any services
rendered hereunder and that, were GES Automation Technology, Inc.
to assume any further liability other than as set forth herein, such
consideration would of necessity be set substantially higher.

DEFAMLT AND TERMIMATION

Events of Default: These Terms and Conditions may be terminated by
the non-defaulting party if any of the following events of default occur:
{a) if a party materially fails to perform or comply with these Terms and
Conditions or any provision hereof; (b} if either party fails to strictly
comply with the provisions of confidentiality; {c) if a party becomes
insolvent or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they
mature, or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (d) if a
petition under any foreign, state, or United States bankruptcy act,
receivership statute, or the like, as they now exist, or as they may be
amended, is filed by a party; or {e) if such a petition is filed by any third
party, or an application for a receiver is made by anyone and such
petition or application is not resolved favorably within ninety (90) days.

Effective Date of Termination: Termination due to a material breach of
any of these Terms and Conditions shall be effective upon notice
MNOTICES

Al notices, authorizations, and requests in connection with this
Agreement shall be deemed given: {a) five days after being deposited
in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered, return receipt
requested, or {b) one day after being sent by overnight courier, charges
prepaid, with a confirming fax; and addressed as first set forth above
or to such other address as the party to receive the notice or request
so designates by written notice to the other.

GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE

The laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania shall govern the
validity, interpretation, construction and performance of these Terms
and Conditions. The Courts of the Commonwealth Pennsylvania and
the Courts of Dauphin County, Pennsylvania (or, if there is exclusive
federal jurisdiction, the United States District Court for the District of
Pennsylvania} shall have exclusive jurisdiction and venue over any
dispute arising out of these Terms and Conditions, and the Customer
hereby consents to the jurisdiction of such courts.

SEVERABILITY

If any provision of these Terms and Conditions shall be held by a court
of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 11 0f 13



ESWA. Purchase Order

FOEDERICKSOUNG. P4

Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority

Vendor ERD, Ltd.

Date: 02/13/2027

P.O. #:02122026_ERD_UVBallast_Repair

Customer ID:

Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority
113 East Main Street

705 Indeneer Drive P.O. Box 161
Kernersville, NC 27284 Fredericksburg , PA 17026
(336) 992-3611 (717) 865-0774
Shipping Method Shipping Terms Delivery Date
8D TBD 8D B
Qty ftem # Description Job Unit Price Line Total
2.00 Cluaie # 1813931 Repair faulty UV Ballasts 429286 $1,285.00 J2.57000
N N |
- I
= . |
Al — E— . e
— — !
o |
|. -
Subtotal| $ 257000
1. Please send two copies of your invoice. T
. . : . ' Sales Tax
2. Enter this order in accordance with the prices, terms, delivery B
method, and specifications listed above. Total} $ 2,570.00
3. Please nofifiy us immediately if you are unable to ship as ol =
specified.
4. Send all corespondence to:
Office Manager Authorized by Date

PO Box 161
Fredeiicksburg, PA 17026
(717) 865-7452

(717) 8650779

113 E. Main St., PO Box 141, Fredericksburg, PA 17026 (717) 845-7452 (717) 865-0779 administrator@fswaonline.net

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 12 of 13



To: Dustin Keller - Quotation
Fredericksburg Sewer & Water ‘ #1813931

Authority (25728) Industrial Electronic Repair 12/15/2025

1 FSWA Lane ERD LTD Page 1 / 1

Lebanon, PA 17046 705 Indeneer Drive

Phone: 1-717-304-1061 Kernersville, NC 27284 Quote valid for 30 days

Email: dkeller@fswaonline.net Phone: +1 336-992-3611 https://www.industrialrepairstore.com

Job Unit / Serial PO# Ref# Repair Rush Total

111925004 Nedap 9987126 / N527C029 $1,285.00 $0.00 $1,285,00
121125007 Nedap 9987126 / N722C017 $1,285.00 $0.00 $1,285.00
121125008 Nedap 9987126 / N527C021 $1,285.00 $0.00 $1,285.00
121125009 Nedap 9987126 / N722C001 $1,285.00 $0.00 $1,285.00

Total: $5,140.00

Please sign, date, and return to ERD via email (cserv@erdltdinc.com)

Terms This quotation serves as a legal document. Authorizing approval by Quotes ERD reserves the right to requote any repair (i.e. missing parts,
signature or email qualifies the individual to provide compensation to numerous repair attempts)
ERD for services rendered. Once an order has been approved, ERD
holds the right to continue services and charge the full agreed-upon
amount.

Service Lead times vary by product and current volume. Contact

Turnaround cserv@erdltdinc.com or call 336-992-3611 for the current turnaround
time. For a faster turnaround time, please include hookup info,

Rush Orders Rush orders incur an additional fee. All parts will be ordered with schematics, manuals, or any other relevant documentation.
expedited delivery.

Unclaimed Unit(s) left at ERD over 30 days are subject to a per-unit storage fee
Warranty Warranty terms are posted at Unit(s) of $25.00/day.
hilpsejiwww.industrialrepgirstore:com/Waranty Unrepaired There will be a minimum $350.00 up to 50% quoted amount time and
Software and  ERD does not warranty any application software, user programs or Unit{s) materials charge for unit(s) that are determined to be unrepairable.
Firmware firmware. Units deemed inoperable due to custom applications(s)
and/or firmware are not considered a warranty
Print Name: Date: Issued P.O. Number(s):

Authorized Signature:

FSWA - January 2026 - Operations Report - Page 13 of 13

© 2017-2025 ERD Ltd Inc - rev. 03.2024



FREDERICKSBURG SEWER & WATER AUTHORITY
Steckbeck Engineering - Project Status Reports
February 16, 2026

ENGINEERING ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION:

No engineering action items.

GENERAL / ADMINISTRATIVE:

SESI continues to assist the Administrative and Operation Staffs with technical issues as requested.

FREDERICKSBURG WWTP OPERATIONS SUPPORT:

-

We have gathered the required information from Dusty and Dot and are working on the 2025 Chapter 94
report.

We routinely review the monthly Commercial Sewer User O&M Charges for anomalies.

Bell & Evans has experienced some pump issues with old well #1 which is delaying pumping water to
Plant 3 via their transfer pipelines. They are now predicting mid-March to commence pumping.

MONROE VALLEY WWTP OPERATIONS SUPPORT:

We have gathered the required information from Dusty and Dot and are working on the 2025 Chapter 94
report.

WATER SYSTEM OPERATIONS SUPPORT:

We have updated the FSWA water model to assist Bell & Evans in determining if they want to loop the
Chestnut Hill Road water line down Blue Mountain Road to tie into the water main on the east end of
SR22. They would like to avoid having to build a water tank for fire protection.

WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS — MANGANESE FILTRATION FACILITY

The PENNVEST funding application has been delayed due to a late-breaking comment letter from the
DEP and slow drawing turn-around from Dutchland. We are now working with the intent to submit it for
the April 29, 2026 deadline. The PENNVEST Board meeting will probably take place in July 2026. This
will push the schedule out, but we are expecting to be able to have a startup date in the second half of
2027.

Due to the delays in the project, Hungerford & Terry is submitting an invoice for retainage on the project
in the amount of $40,245. Dot may have received this by meeting time.

The NPDES permit application has been submitted to the LCCD along with checks for payment. A glitch
has required new checks to be cut. It is currently under review, and we expect to have the permit in hand
soon.

We are working with the solar system engineer to integrate the design into our site and electrical system.
Due to timing, this will not be a part of the PENNVEST application. We will apply for other state or federal
grants and loans as a separate project. No change since the last meeting.

We are waiting for a new preliminary set of drawings from Dutchland for us to mark up all the hatches and
pipe penetrations. We are also getting the Dutchland costs broken into two parts so the basins can be
purchased directly through Costars. The installation will have to be paid for separately.

We have forwarded various items required by PENNVEST to Eric Gibson for legal review and handling
and have met with him to discuss the items. They are 1) Three easements, 2) PV Resolution to Apply, 3)
PV Letter of Responsibility, and 4) Modifications to Randy Martin Deed for Well 7 Wellhead Protection
Zone.

MISCELLANEOUS

Nothing this month

Respectfully Submitted by:
SESI - Jeff Steckbeck and Paul Lutzkanin



Dot Stubblebine

e — R —_— e — s
From: Eric Gibson <eric@ajflaw.net>
Sent: Thursday, February 12, 2026 6:45 PM
To: Jeff Steckbeck; Bevans, Dale A CTR NG PAARNG (USA); Dale Bevans

(jdbevans@comcast.net); Tom Demler (twcsdemler@comcast.net); Rick Rudy
(rr@comcast.net); Scott Gettle; Kevin Helms (kdhelms62@gmail.com);
randysattazahn@gmail.com; Dot Stubblebine

Cc: Dustin Keller; Paul Lutzkanin
Subject: RE: February 16, 2025 - Operations Report - [UNCLASSIFIED]
Attachments: 2026 Rate Resolution.docx

Attached is the last rate resolution from Tony’s files. It was adopted in 2024 at our February meeting. The only
changes I made were to the Resolution Number and the Date. | reviewed the Legal Rates under Part VII, | don’t
think there’s a need to make any changes to those.

Eric Gibson - Attorney
The Real Estate Transfer Company
eric@ajflaw. et

717-279-8313 t.
717-272-0918f.

279 N. Zinns Mill Rd., Lebanon PA 17042

This message may contain privileged and confidential information.

If you are not the intended recipient, you may not review, copy,
distribute or disclose the contents to others. If you have received

this communication in error, delete it and any attachments and notify the sender immediately.

From: Jeff Steckbeck <jsteckbeck@steckbeck.net>

Sent: Thursday, February 12, 2026 1:30 PM

To: Bevans, Dale A CTR NG PAARNG (USA) <dale.a.bevans.ctr@army.mil>; Dale Bevans (jdbevans@comcast.net)
<jdbevans@comcast.net>; Tom Demler (twcsdemler@comcast.net) <twcsdemler@comcast.net>; Rick Rudy
(ljrr@comcast.net) <ljrr@comcast.net>; Scott Gettle <gettlefamily@pa.net>; Kevin Helms (kdhelms62@gmail.com)
<kdhelms62@gmail.com>; randysattazahn@gmail.com; Dot Stubblebine <dstubblebine@fswaonline.net>

Cc: Dustin Keller <dkeller@fswaonline.net>; Eric Gibson <eric@ajflaw.net>; Paul Lutzkanin <plutzkanin@steckbeck.net>
Subject: RE: February 16, 2025 - Operations Report - [UNCLASSIFIED]

Attached is the Engineering Report for Monday.
Regards,

Jeffrey D. Steckbeck, P.E.
Founder & President Emeritus- retired 12/31/2025
Steckbeck Engineering & Surveying, inc. (SESI)

Now practicing, and advising SESI on select municipal projects via:
Municipal & Authority Support Services, LLC (MASS)
266 North Zinns Mill Road



FREDERICKSBURG SEWER AND WATER AUTHORITY
RESOLUTION NO. 2026-02-16

A RESOLUTION OF THE FREDERICKSBURG SEWER AND WATER AUTHORITY
ESTABLISHING ITS RATES, FEES, SERVICE CALCULATIONS AND CHARGES
FROM AND AFTER FEBRUARY 16, 2026

WHERFEAS, the Municipality Authorities Act, 53 Pa.C.S. §5601, et. seq., grants the
Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority the power to fix, alter, charge and collect
rates and charges in areas served by its facilities.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED. that the undersigned, an authorized
representative of the Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority hereby certifies that at a
meeting held on the 16" day of February, 2026, after due notice, at which a quorum was
present, the Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority adopted the following resolution:

“RESOLVED, that the Fredericksburg Sewer and Water Authority hereby
establishes the rates, fees, service calculations and charges set forth more
fully on the attached Exhibit “A.” which is incorporated herein by
reference. which rates, fees, service calculations and charges shall apply
trom and after February 16, 2026.”

DULY ADOPTED., this 16" day of February, 2026, by the Fredericksburg Sewer and
Water Authority, in lawful session duly assembled.

FREDERICKSBURG SEWER
AND WATER AUTHORITY

Dale A. Bevans, Chairman

ATTEST:

Dot Stubblebine, Secretary

FSWA = Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page I of 17




EXHIBIT “A”

Part I — Application, Subdivision and Land Development Review Fees — All Service

Areas
1. Non-refundable, base Application Fee to Authority*:
A, One (1) EDU of service (water, sewer or both) $250.00

B. More than one (1) EDU of service (water, sewer or both)  $500.00

*All connections of more than one (1) EDU of water or sewer service shall require the
execution of a Developer’s Agreement prepared by Authority’s Solicitor. For clarity, an
application for connection to both Authority’s public water and sanitary sewage
collection system, collectively, are considered one (1) EDU.

Then Add to Base Application Fee:

2 Single Family Dwellings, with or without Land Development. $700.00
3. Land Development Plans - Commercial, Industrial, Institutional, Two or
More Residential Dwellings, ete.. These fees are intended to offset the
Authority’s administrative costs, filing and reproduction expenses, engineering
review fees, and legal fees related to preparation of Extender’s or Developer’s
Agreements. Engineering fees are further addressed under paragraph 5, below.
Acres*® Authority Filing Fee
0-2 $1,000.00
2.01-10 $2,000.00
10.01 =25 $3.000.00
25.01 -100 $4,000.00
100.01 + $5,000.00
* Area of tract for newly developed lot or disturbed acreage of existing tract
undergoing expansion.
4. Sketch Plans in Contemplation of Subdivision/Land Development: $250.00

Lad

Minor and Major Subdivisions or Land Developments with New Lots/Units -
Residential only; no commercial, industrial or institutional development included.
These fees are intended to offset the Authority’s administrative costs, filing and
reproduction expenses, engineering review fees, and legal fees related to
preparation of extender’s or developer’s agreements. Engineering fees are further
addressed under paragraph 5, below.

# of Lots/Units Preliminary Plan Fee*
1-10 $700.00

10-25 $1,125.00

25-50 $2,250.00

FSWA — Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 2 of 17




51 or greater $2.965.00

# of Lots/Units Final Plan Fee*
1-10 $350.00

10-25 $562.50

25-50 $1,125.00

51 or greater $1.482.50

For projects which have a combined Preliminary/Final Plan. fees shall be
paid in the cumulative (i.e. both the preliminary tee and final fee shall be
paid to the Authority upon submission for review).

4, Land Development Plans - Commercial, Industrial, Institutional, etc.,
including those with some residential units/development. These fees are
intended to offset the Authority’s administrative costs, filing and reproduction
expenses, engineering review fees, and legal fees related to preparation of
Extender’s or Developer’s Agreements. Engineering fees are further addressed
under paragraph 5. below

Acres* Authority Filing Fee
0-2 $1,000.00
2.01-10 $2.000.00
10.01 =25 $3.000.00
25.01 - 100 $4.000.00
100.01 -+ $5.000.00

Area of tract for newly developed lot or disturbed acreage of
existing tract undergoing expansion.

3. Engineer Review Fees — All applications for review and approval of the water
and sanitary sewer portions of subdivision and land development plans submitted
to the Authority by any Person are subject to review and inspection by the
Authority and Authority’s Engineer, and the Person submitting the application
shall pay the Authority for these inspections and reviews at the time of filing of
the application in accordance with the Application Fee Schedules set forth above.
Recognizing that the amount of effort involved in reviewing and inspecting the
work detailed in any application varies depending upon the scope of the work, any
Person making an application for water or sewer service may be required to place
additional financial security to cover the reasonably anticipated cost to be
incurred by the Authority. Any such amount will be detailed in the Developer’s
Agreement prepared by the Authority’s solicitor and remitted to Authority along
with the fully executed Developer’s Agreement. Also, any work not performed in
accordance with Authority Rules and Regulations, or special requirements
imposed regarding a particular project, that require reinspection shall require the
Person making application to reimburse the Authority at the rate of $150.00 per
hour for the additional effort.

FSWA - Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 3 of 17




6. All fees shall be payable at the time of application. Authority shall not
commence any action regarding any application until the application fee is paid in
full and, if required, a Developer’s Agreement is executed by applicant and all
additional fees or charges set forth in the Developer’s Agreement paid. or placed,
in full and, if necessary, replenished in accordance with the terms of the
Developer’s Agreement. Authority may cease all efforts with regard to any
application if, at any time, the Person making the application is or become
delinquent in the payment of any fees, costs or charges due hereunder.

FSIWA — Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 4 of 17




Part II — Tapping Fees*

Fredericksburg Unified Sewer District $5,000.00 per EDU
Fredericksburg Sewer District — Richard Hills $5.500.00 per EDU (includes $500
special purpose part for pump station

repair).
Fredericksburg Water District $2.500.00 per EDU
Monroe Valley — Spruce Street $9,900.00 per EDU

W%

Tapping fees are set in accordance with an Act 57 calculation performed from
time to time by the Authority’s Consulting Engineer and are subject to change.
Tapping fees are calculated using applicable census data and are used to
determine equivalent dwelling units ("EDUS”) of service per the requirements of
Act 57.

FSWA — Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 5 of 17




Part 111 - Metered Water Rates

Service at the schedule of rates listed below is available to any Consumer served by the
water system of the Authority, except those to which another rate is specifically
applicable:

Consumption Charges

Gallons per Quarter Gallons per Month Per 1.000 Gallons
For the first

FFor the next

For the next (See Attachmeni 1)

For all over

Minimum Charges

Size of Meter Per Quarter Amount
(Inches) Gallons Amount Per Month

5/8

3/4

1

1-2

2

3 (See Attachment 1)

4

6

8

10

12

FSWA — Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 6 of 17




Part 1V - Public and Private Fire Service Rates

Annual Charges

Public fire hydrants $150.00
Private fire hydrants $150.00

Each fire service line (fire line sprinkle service or other) entering a building wall or feeding an
on-site storage tank shall be charged the following fees as a "ready to serve” or “standby™ fee:

Building Square Footage Annual Standby Fee
All $.0125 per sq. foot

In addition, at the time of connection to the water system, as part of the tapping fee, the following
charges shall apply:

Actual or Effective Service Charge Tapping
Line Size (In Inches) Fee
2 $100.00
3 $200.00
= $300.00
f $500.00
5 $1,000.00
10 $2.000.00
12 (by Special permission of Authority only) $3,000.00

No larger lines are allowed

FSWA = Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 7 of 17




Part V - Special Water Charges

Temporary for construction, demolition. etc. $200.00 plus
usage, not
including debt

service
Frozen meter (residential) $50.00
Test meter $100.00
Turn Off or Turn On (for each) $50.00 or

$100.00 for

both turn on
and turn oft

Remove and reinstall meter (residential) $50.00
Removal of meter $50.00
Notification in person of turning oft service $50.00
Change of ownership charge (final meter read) $50.00

FSWA - Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 8 of 17




Part VI — Special Purpose Charges

Delinquent/Overdue Accounts:

Returned/Bounced Check

Infiltration and Intflow Charge (quarterly’) $300.00
Fat, Oils and Grease Charge (quarterly) $500.00
Failure to Replace Water Meter (quarterly) $500.00

In order to avoid substantial economic loss to the
Authority, any non-residential account which
becomes delinquent or overdue for two consecutive
billing cycles, or more than three billing cycles in
any twelve month period, may. at the discretion of
the Board, be required to post financial security in
an amount equal to the highest bill incurred by the
customer as a condition for the restoration or
continuation of service. The financial security may
be any of the types set forth in 53 Pa.C.S.A.
§5607(23), as amended.

Per check, per deposit attempt: greater of $50.00 or
bank fee incurred by Authority.

FSWA = Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Puge 9 of 17




0.

Part VII - Schedule of Attorney’s Fees to be Added
to the Amount Collected as Part of Claims and Liens for
Delinquent Accounts (Established by Resolution 99-1).

Legal Services Fee For Services

Initial review; drafting and sending first demand letter $150.00
Drafting and sending second demand letter $100.00
Preparing and filing Lien $300.00
Preparing and filing Writ of Scire Facias $500.00
Obtaining Reissued Writ $75.00

Preparing and filing District Justice Complaint $250.00
Preparing and sending notice required by $250.00

Pa.R.C.P. §237.1

Preparing and filing Motion for Alternate Service $100.00
Preparing and filing Writ of Execution $300.00
All other services not covered above Hourly amount equal

to Solicitor’s regular
rate charged to
Authority.

There shall be added to the above amounts the reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection with each of these services, which expenses shall be
deemed to be part of the fees.

The amount of attorneys' fees determined in accordance with this Section shall be
added to the Authority’s claim with regard to each Account.

Assessment/Collection Procedures — Attorney’s Fees. The following collection
procedures are hereby established in accordance with the Municipal Claims Act:

A,

At least thirty (30) days prior to assessing or imposing attorneys' fees in
connection with the collection of an Account, the Authority shall mail or cause to
be mailed, by certified U.S. Mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, a
notice of such intention to the rate payer or other entity liable for the Account (the
“Account Debtor™).

FSWA - Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 10 of 17




B. If within thirty (30) days after mailing the notice in accordance with this Section.
the certified mail to any Account Debtor is refused or unclaimed. or the return
receipt is not received, then at least ten (10) days prior to the assessing or
imposing attorneys' fees pursuant to this Resolution, the Authority shall mail or
cause to be mailed, by first class U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, a second notice to
the Account Debtor.

. All notices required by this Resolution shall be mailed to the Account Debtor’s
last known post oftice address, as recorded in the records of the Authority, and
such other address(es) as the Authority is able to obtain from the county otfice
responsible for assessments and revisions of taxes.

D. Each notice shall include the following:
l. The type of rent, rate or other charge, the date it became due and the

amount owed, including penalty and interest;

2. A statement of the Authority’s intent to impose or assess attornevs' tees
within thirty (30) days after the mailing of the first notice, or within ten
(10) days after the mailing of the second notice;

The manner in which the assessment or imposition of attorney fees may be
avoided by payment of the Account; and

Lad

4, The place of payment for Accounts and the name and telephone number of
the Authority official designated as responsible for collection matters.

FSWA = Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 11 of 17




Part VIII - Schedule of Equivalent Dwelling Unit (“EDU”) Assienment

This schedule sets the manner for assignment of EDUs for the various classes of
structures anticipated within the FSWA service area. Any building or business that falls
beyond the scope of anticipated types of structures shall have the EDU determination
made by the FSWA Board of Directors, based on recommendations by the authority staff
and consulting engineer. For purposes of water and sewer billing, 11,000 gallons of flow
per quarter (and the monthly and daily equivalent) shall constitute one (1) EDU.

CLASSIFICATION TYPE EDUs

Any single family residential dwelling whether stand-alone. semi-attached.
modular dwelling. mobile hame; ar Trail e e R e mses 1.00

Multi-unit dwellings:

a. Every sleeping room in a hotel, motel, rooming house, or other similar

SHUCTUER . s i s o 5 A T 5 e e 0.20
b. An efficiency or one-bedroom BDArTIMEN Gy o mrmmnnr wsmenmensnameis v 0.50
c. A two-bedroom or larger apartment.............................. 1.00
d. If the structure contains a central laundry facility for use by
residents. for each five rooms or fraction thereol, add............. | 1.00
¢. Foralaundry facility meant to service the laundry needs of the
facility itself to launder linens and housekeeping items, for each
10 rooms or fraction thereol, add..........ovieeevisiniiiiiinnns 1.00
Restaurant, sit-down style, per every 10 seats or fraction thereof. . ST 1.00
Restaurant, drive-in type, per every 10 seats or fraction thereof................. 1.00

Public or private school or college, with showers, per every 15 students,
staff, and employees, or fraction thereof.................................__ 1.00

Public or private school or college, without showers, per every 25 students,
staff and employees or fraction thereof..............oooooo i 1.00

Retail stores, business, or professional office, without showers for

employees,
10 or fewer employees........................ N R e 1.00
Each additional five employees, or fraction thereof................. 0.50

Business or industry providing showers for employees, per eight
employees or fraction thereof. ..... cuawsrmsamsstimma i, e o 1.00

Manufacturing businesses employing a water intensive process by which water
consumption or sewer discharge exceeds normal domestic capacity as defined by the PA
Municipalities Authorities Act (“*PMAA?”) provision for tapping fees and EDUs. EDUs
shall be determined by Notes #7 and #8 below. See Notes 7 & 8.

FSHA ~ Resolution 2026-02-16 — F. ebruary 16, 2026 - Page 12 of 17




Free-standing barbershop, first chair,.........ovvvviiiiiiiiii s 1.00

Each additienal chaitimmmmmmnsmnmsmansssrns R A .25
Free-standing beauty Shop, DOT Ghailimsis s xashiss 48 a5 mmrsmrnenmmme g 1.00
Each additional chair....... R o T A e R e ey (150
Barber shop. attached to owner’s dwelling, first chair........................... 0.25
Each additiona]l ehairs e smmssig i e 0.25
Beauty shop attached to owner’s dwelling, first chair...........covvevniiiiiinnn, 0.75
Each additional chairse s mmssmes s i s i s s 0.75

Service station, mini-market, or similar business, with or without public restrooms

(but no fast food service OF SaliNG ArCA)....covve e eienes e ieaeres 1.00
Any free-standing building used for business purposes.......................... 1.00
Any commercial area of 450 Square feet used for washing cars or trucks..... 1.00

Each additional 250 square feet of wash area........................... ... [.00
Bach Laundromat; per five suashe s s S i Sy 1.00

Each additional washing machine — ..........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiininan, 0.20
Each non-profit building, such as a church, library, firehouse, etc.............. 1.00

Each enclosed area or building which is used for meetings, conferences,
Weddings or other gatherings and available for rent to the members of the

Organization or to the general public, each 2,500 s.f., or fraction thereof............ 1.00
Day care center, per 10 enrolled children, or fraction thereof........................ 1.00
Every additianal child above teni it aianrmn 0.10

FSWA = Resolution 2026-02-16 — February 16, 2026 - Page 13 of 17




NOTES:

1) For businesses, schools, and certain other non-residential users, an annual questionnaire
related to numbers of individuals using the structure may be required. This questionnaire
may result in the recalculation of EDUs for the succeeding year,

1o

More than one class of user may be assigned to any given account if the use of the
structure warrants such assignment, For example, a lirchouse, if it also has an
area of 5,000 square feet that may be rented for social gatherings, ete., may result
in the assignment of both user classes.

3) A multi-unit dwelling cannot have eacl dwelling unit separately metered: there
will be one meter for the entire building and the building owner will be billed for
all usage and debt service in accordance with number of EDUS determined by
reference to Authority’s EDU schedule. Multi-unit building owners may meter
each unit/apartment but Authority shall not bill individual units/apartments and
Authority shall not provide, nor take any responsibility for, installing or repairing
any such meters installed by the property owner/landlord.

4) Billings for accounts with multiple EDUs will be assumed to have a minimum of
5,000 gallons of usage per EDU per quarter or 1.667 gallons of usage per month,
[f the usage is measured and is greater than the minimum, then the greater amount
will be billed.

5) Billing for a car wash wil] be based on 90% of the water consumed by the car
wash, since some of the water wil] not go into the public sewer system.

6) This schedule is used for both the initial assignment of EDUs and for any
subsequent determination of EDUs based on changes to either the structure or the
use of the structure,

7) Non-residential water customers utilizing water for consumption and who
discharge beyond normal domestic purposes shall, at the time of application for
service, provide the FSWA with an estimate of the anticipated normal daily water
use and sewer discharge. The dail ¥ flow shall be divided by the number of
gallons per day for an EDU as defined by a Resolution of the Authority. or. in the
absence thereof. it shall be divided by the applicable provision in the PMAA for
the municipality in which the customer s located to arrive the initial EDL
assignment. Since the initial EDU assignment is based upon an estimate provided
by the customer, the FSWA shall monitor the actual water or sewer consumption
for one year (four ful] Quarter of meter readings), afier which the actual annual
average will then be used to adjust the initial EDU assignment for billing
purposes going forward from the date of the adjustment. The tapping fee will
then also be adjusted if actual Usage varies more than ten percent (10%) trom the
customer provided estimate, with additional payment required from the customer
for any shortfall from the original tapping fee paid at the time of connection. For
Sewer customers not on the public water system, a well meter shall be installed by
the customer in accordance with the FSWA specifications and details, with a

ESIA — Resolution 2024-02-19 _ F ehbruary 19, 2024 - Page 14 of 17




&)

remote read out installed at a location approved by the FSWA. The well meter
readings will be utilized for the sewer billings and for the first anniversary
recalculation of the EDU assignment as set forth above.

After the initial adjustment of EDU assignment described in paragraph & above,
the FSWA will continue to monitor non-domestic customer’s water consumption
annually, and upon observation of an increase in the use by the customer, a
readjustment of the EDU assignment will be made and will be utilized for billing
purposes after the readjustment.

Anyone who believes that the assignment of EDUs to his home or business is in error
may appeal such assignment to the board of directors who shall make a final
determination.

FSIVA — Resolution 2024-02-19 — F, ehruary 19, 2024 - Page 15 of 17




Part IX - Schedule of Q&M Costs for Purposes of Surcharges for Strong Waste

This schedule sets the Authority’s Operations and Maintenance Costs as they relate to
calculation of surcharges for Strong Waste in accordance with Section 16 of the
Authority’s Rules and Regulations, as amended, if amended.

For purposes of strong waste surcharges, the following monthly costs shall be allocated
tor each of the following:

A. Monthly cost to treat BOD3: $26,538.46

B. Monthly cost to treat Total Suspended Solids (TSS): $2,211.54

C. Monthly cost to treat Total Phosphorus (TP): $22.115.39

D. Monthly cost to treat Ammonia Nitrogen (NH-3): $17.692.31

E. Monthly cost to treat Fats, Oil and Grease (FOG): $17.692.31

F. Monthly cost to treat Sulfide: $0.00

G. All other non-permitted contaminants/chemicals/items: Actual cost to treat
plus 5%.

FSWA — Resolution 2024-02-19 — F, ehruary 19, 2024 - Puge 16 of 17




Attachment 1

Fredericksburg Sewer & Water Authority
Annual Sewer & Water Rates

Unified Sewer Rates

Charge Description

Rate per 1000 Gal

Metered Customers: Quarterly Sewer
Charge per 1,000 gallons/5,000 gallon
minimum

$8.75

Non-Metered Customers: Quarterly
Sewer Charge

$165.25

Debt Service Charge per
EDU/Quarterly

$69.00 (Per EDU not
Gallons)

Chesapeake Bay Charge Per EDU

N/A

Water Rates

Water Consumption

Rate per 1000 Gal

ALL GALLONS

$5.00

FSWA — Resolution 2024-02-19 — February 19, 2024 - Page 17 of 17




GIBSON

LAW GROUP LLc
313 W. Liberty Street, Suite 113, Lancaster, PA 17603
P: (717) 344-5525

F: (717) 344-5994

February 9, 2026

Attorney John M. Zimmerman

RE: FSWA
Dear Attorney Zimmerman:

[ received your letter dated February 2, 2026 and the enclosed proposal signed by Clarence
Manbeck and the Bethel Township Board of Supervisors on April 27, 1989. As stated in that letter
the Township was agreeing to negotiate with Mr. Manbeck for facilities to be constructed and the
consideration to be paid for the construction and proposed to include a supply of water to the airport
office and hangers and house located at the east end of the runway without cost to Manbeck or his
heirs or assigns as part of a final agreement. The letter states this was intended to compensate him
for the drilling and grant of an easement. However, as indicated in the letter this was a proposal and
agreement to negotiate for final resolution and part of a total compensation package to Mr.
Manbeck, and not the final agreement itself. [ do not have any records of the parties ever come to an
final agreement and resolution in this matter.

Regardless, the proposed resolution was to compensate Mr. Manbeck personally for alleged
damages. There is no evidence this Agreement, or any subsequent resolution, was recorded, and was
never structured as a covenant running with the land. Moreover, the clause in question states
Manbeck OR his heirs OR assigns, creating alternative beneficiaries, not additional beneficiaries.
Further it does not cover the assigns of heirs as is the situation before us. The property is no longer
owned by Mr. Manbeck, or his heirs. The property is now owned by the Farmer’s Pride Airport,
LLC, a wholly independent legal entity separate and apart from the members. Said entity is not an
heir or assign of Mr. Manbeck as contemplated by the proposal set forth in the enclosed letter and
the LLC is not a party of the proposal from 1989.

There is nothing in the letter to indicate the Agreement was to run with the land in perpetuity, or that
the supply of water was to be anything more than to compensate Mr. Manbeck for the easement and
drilling. Mr. Manbeck received the full benefit of the proposal, and was adequately compensated for
both the drilling and easement since 1989. This was a settlement proposal for damages alleged to
have been incurred by Mr. Manbeck and to compensate his for that, not a perpetual obligation.

Further the supply of water was for the use of the office, hangers and house. Unfortunately, it
became clear that the water usage exceeded the reasonable or normal usage of those structures, and
outside the intended use contemplated by the original proposal. This excessive use has come at a
considerable cost to the Authority and rate payors. An open supply of water was found being



diverted from the house to a duck pond and for other uses and just allowed to flow continuously —
such use is outside the scope of the 1989 proposal.

Enclosed is usage that was logged from April 25, 2025 through July 30, 2025. There are days where
the property consumed over, 4,000, 5,000 and even 6,000 gallons of water in a single day. That’s
more than the average home consumes for an entire month. In a typical 3 month the Airport
property would likely be allotted at most 3 EDUs about 33,000 gallons of water. The airport in this
period consumed over 249,000 gallons of water. The current bill for the last quarter of 2025 while
less than previous usage still shows excessive usage of water for the size and character of the

property.

The Authority is responsible for the usage and consumption of water, as it must purchase water
from the City of Lebanon Authority (COLA) in addition to the water it produces as there is not
enough supply for the needs of the Township. This requires responsible usage and conservation in
order to ensure the continued supply and at rates that are affordable and reasonable.

As Mr. Manbeck was fully and adequately compensated under the terms of the proposal from 1989,
and the ownership of the property has since passed to an entity not an heir or assign of Mr.
Manbeck, and due to the excessive and irresponsible use of water outside of the scope of original
proposal it is as previously indicated the position of the Authority that the current and any future
owners are responsible for the costs of their water usage.

Respectfully,

Eric M. Gibson
Solicitor for FSWA

b



